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“ The first 17.6kms of the 
Wadjemup Walk Trail was opened 
to improve the visitor experience”
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Message to the Minister

The Hon Liza Harvey MLA 

Minister for Police; Tourism; Road Safety; Women's Interests.

In accordance with section 61(1) of the Financial Management Act 2006 and in fulfilment of obligations imposed on the Authority  

by the Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987, we hereby submit for your information and presentation to Parliament the Annual Report  

of the Rottnest Island Authority for the year ended 30 June 2014.

This annual report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006.

John Driscoll 
Chairman

23 September 2014 

Stephen Lauder 
Deputy Chairman

23 September 2014 
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“ Visitation satisfaction in 2013/14 
was maintained with Rottnest 
Island having met or exceeded 
the expectations of 97% of  
its visitors”
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Message from the Chairman

In my second contribution as Chairman of 

the Rottnest Island Authority (RIA), it is 

my pleasure to be able to report a number 

of pleasing achievements for the year.

The RIA achieved a positive net cashflow 

of $0.5m for the year, well in excess of our 

target in a year of significant investment 

($6.7m) into facilities and infrastructure 

on the Island.

Our regular customer surveys continue to 

reflect the high degree of enjoyment our 

visitors have in a day or stay on Rottnest 

with 98% recording “Satisfied” or “Highly 

Satisfied” in the final quarter of the year. 

Visitor perceptions of Rottnest 

accommodation delivering a value for 

money experience also reached a record 

high in the last quarter of the financial year.

A significant increase in the proportion 

of visitors aged between 25-34 years is a 

good indication that our brand refresh and 

new core branding positioning statement, 

“Rottnest Is the simple pleasures in life”, 

is resonating particularly well with this 

age group, creating new generations of 

Rottnest lovers.

We achieved a modest but encouraging 

turnaround against a history of stagnating 

visitor numbers. Visitor growth of 4.3% 

in a dynamic industry and with the 

added challenge of the Island’s ageing 

infrastructure is an indication that we are 

headed in the right direction. 

It is to the credit of CEO, Paolo Amaranti, 

and his staff that both visitor numbers and 

yield have improved.  All Key Performance 

Indicators under the CEO Performance 

Agreement have been met and in many 

cases exceeded.  Conservation targets and 

outstanding visitor satisfaction levels have 

been achieved, whilst changes to the RIA’s 

structure have been implemented enabling 

a greater focus on marketing, sales and 

product development. 

A wide-ranging simplification of 

entrenched booking processes has 

included doing away with the traditional 

ballot – a source of confusion for those not 

“in the know”.

Achieving growth on Rottnest Island 

cannot be allowed to adversely impact the 

Island’s unique heritage and environment.  

Securing Bronze certification from global 

benchmark Earthcheck for a third year 

is indicative of our continuing efforts to 

protect and conserve the environment.   

A push towards the installation of a solar 

farm received a boost during the year 

with the acquisition of solar panels from 

Verve Energy.  In a combined approach 

with Hydro-Tasmania, we are on target to 

achieve an impressive increase from 30% 

to 45% penetration of renewable energy.  

Our efforts towards sustainability were not 

only recognised at the WA Tourism Awards 

with a second consecutive Gold Award in 

this category; but with a Gold medal from 

the Pacific Asia Travel Association (PATA) 

at its regional excellence awards.

The RIA was also recognised by our peers 

at the annual WA Tourism Awards with a 

Gold Award in Specialist Tourism Services 

for the Island’s Bike & Hire service; and 

silver and bronze medals for our unique 

accommodation and cultural heritage. The 

Bike & Hire service went on to win Bronze 

at the national tourism awards.

During the year, a new five year Rottnest 

Island Management Plan (RIMP) has been 

drafted and presented to the public for 

comment to replace the 2009-2014 RIMP 

which has been successfully implemented.  

A sub-strategy within the Draft 2014-

2019 RIMP are the recommendations 

of a Boating Management Strategy 

and $600,000 marina feasibility study 

which received majority public support 

in 2013.  In a first for Rottnest, the draft 

RIMP is accompanied by a 20 year vision 

document, Rottnest Island Master Plan –  

A 20 Year Vision (MP20).



“ During 2013/14 the RIA achieved 
a positive net cashflow of $0.5m"
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Rottnest’s success as a tourist 

destination is threatened by an 

increasing need for greater investment 

into its ageing infrastructure; more 

accommodation choices and increased 

mooring opportunities.  The MP20 seeks 

to provide a long-term vision which 

strikes a balance between affordability 

and investment in the Island’s natural 

and built assets, while not compromising 

its unique environment and holiday 

experience.  Achieving financial 

sustainability continues to present a 

considerable challenge for the RIA.

It was my great pleasure during the year 

to officiate at the 75th Anniversary of the 

Firing of the Guns, attended by members 

of the Australian Defence Force, WWII 

veterans and members of the public, 

including an address from the Premier’s 

representative, Veterans Minister, the Hon 

Joe M Francis MLA.  Although the weather 

was somewhat unkind, it was a fitting 

tribute to the men and women who served 

on Rottnest.  In the centenary year of the 

formation of the ANZACs, it was a privilege 

for me to once again officiate at the Dawn 

Ceremony on Rottnest – a tradition first 

started in 1922.

My Board colleagues and I acknowledge 

the work and excellence behind the three 

gold PATA awards for marketing and 

cultural heritage, as well as for sustainable 

tourism; State Heritage Awards for 

Outstanding Conservation and nomination 

to the UNESCO Asia Pacific Cultural 

Heritage Conservation Awards.

I take the opportunity to congratulate the 

Hon Liza Harvey MLA on her appointment 

during the year as Minister for Tourism; 

and to say farewell to the Hon Dr Kim 

Hames MLA, ever a strong supporter 

of the Island and particularly of the golf 

course upgrade.  We hope to see him back 

on Rottnest for many a round or two!

As a long-time, regular visitor and Rottnest 

lover, it is my continuing pleasure to be 

able to contribute to the Island’s future 

alongside a committed and dedicated 

Board.  I thank my colleagues for another 

year of intense hard work and shared 

passion.  I congratulate Board members 

Steve Lauder and Peter Hick, and CEO 

Paolo Amaranti on their reappointments 

during the year.

In closing, I would like to thank the many 

volunteers who contribute their time 

and expertise to conserving the Island’s 

environment, and to providing our visitors 

with tours and school holiday activities.  

I would like to commend the Island’s 

business community in reorganising itself 

into the Rottnest Chamber of Commerce.  

We look forward to working closely with 

the Chamber to ensure all businesses 

on the Island flourish in order to provide 

an ever increasing range of facilities and 

services for Island visitors.

John Driscoll 
Chairman
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" I would like to thank the many 
volunteers who contribute their 
time and expertise to conserving 
the Island’s environment”

  John Driscoll – Chairman
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Message from the Chief Executive Officer

I am pleased to include my 10th contribution 

as the CEO to the Rottnest Island Authority 

(RIA) Annual Report.

As a regular and passionate visitor to 

the Island myself, I look back at how the 

Island has changed over the years and 

it makes me proud to be part of the RIA. 

The transformation over the last 10 years 

has resulted in a more economically 

sustainable Island and a commercially 

focused agency. We now have strong 

foundations for future growth based on 

the changing needs of visitors.

As a sign that we are on the right track, 

Rottnest Island continues to be recognised 

by our peers in the tourism industry. 

This year Rottnest Island was recognised 

internationally by the Pacific Asia Travel 

Association (PATA) and also at the Western 

Australian Tourism Awards.

Despite the economic challenges faced by 

the RIA during the past five-year period,  I 

am pleased to report that the majority of the 

25 initiatives aimed at revitalising Rottnest 

Island,  outlined in the  2009-14 Rottnest 

Island Management Plan (RIMP) have been 

fully or mostly implemented.  Over $17 

million invested into specific RIMP initiatives 

have enabled the following outcomes:

Major improvements to Island facilities 

and services; 

• The development of several key 

management strategies such as the 

Boating Management Strategy; and 

• Adoption of a more sustainable 

approach to managing the Island. 

I wish to thank my staff and key 

stakeholders including the business 

community, volunteer groups and relevant 

government agencies for assisting the RIA to 

successfully implement this RIMP, and I look 

forward to a continuation of that support.  

Highlights for the year 2013-2014 include 

achievements across all of the RIA’s 

operations, summarised as follows.

• A positive financial result.

• $8.4m on works programs 

including roof remedial work on 65 

accommodation units (funded by the 

State Government).

• Substantial refurbishment of the 

campground facilities.

• All tennis courts on the Island are 

now competition standard with the 

resurfacing of Bathurst Tennis Courts.

• Interior refurbishment of 29 units in 

Geordie and Longreach Bays.

• Extension of the Visitor Centre.

• Installation of a new 250kL 

containerised seawater desalination 

unit and improvements to 

infrastructure.

• Opening of the Wadjemup Walk Trail.

• Substantial progress has been made 

on the Fairbridge bluff beach access 

stairs and design of a seal viewing 

platform at Cathedral Rocks.

Terrestrial conservation has been boosted 

during the year with the development 

of a herbarium; a baseline survey of 

floristic species; and viability surveys 

of focal conservation targets.  We have 

revegetated 0.45 ha of coastal dune; 7.59 

ha of woodland/woodland heath with 

a total of 20,661 plants and 0.12 ha of 

wetland with over 975 plants.   

“Rottnest Island’ Sustainability 

initiatives were recognised in 

2014 by the Fremantle Chamber 

of Commerce Mayor’s Award”

Our preparedness and response plans, 

coordinated through the Rottnest Island 

Local Emergency Management Committee 

(LEMC) have been reviewed and further  

enhanced by the appointment of a 

Risk, Safety and Emergency Services 

Manager.   Numbers of the Island’s 

Volunteer Fire & Rescue Service (RIVFRS) 

have been increased to 25 for the 

peak bushfire season, with 27 training 

sessions conducted across a range of fire 

operations competencies.

Our grateful thanks go to the many 

volunteers who contribute so much of 

their time and expertise to the Island.  We 

have made pleasing progress in providing 

seamless interaction with the Rottnest 

Voluntary Guides who this year provided 

60,000 of our visitors with tours and 

school holiday activities.  We have included 

a Meet & Greet desk for the Guides in our 

Visitor Centre extended during the year to 

provide additional space for visitor check-

in, ticket purchase and general browsing.
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“ The RIA spent over $17m over the 
five year period to implement the 
Rottnest Island Management Plan 
(2009-14)”
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Improvements to our accommodation 

this year include an upgrade of 29 front 

row units involving repainting, new light 

fittings, retiling, new curtains, blinds, 

doonas and furniture. A significant 

upgrade of the Campground to include 

landscaping, a new camp kitchen, BBQs 

and ablution block has increased the sites 

available for hire from 23 to 43.  

A positive financial result for the year 

was achieved by ceasing some current 

functions; increased cost recovery 

from non-commercial services and 

infrastructure; a reduction in annual 

capital expenditure, ceasing loss-making 

operations, applying asset life-cycle 

costing and improving efficiencies in the 

use of power, gas, fuel and water.  At the 

same time revenue generating included an 

increase in sales revenue and grants.  We 

have substantially upgraded our booking 

systems, doing away with the historic peak 

period ballots making it simpler to book a 

holiday on Rottnest.  

The renovation of the Rottnest Island 

branding and subsequent repositioning 

has successfully resonated across our 

market segments, and we have this year 

introduced a more consistent approach to 

our search engine marketing to support 

all major marketing activities.  As a result 

we have seen significant increases in 

our web traffic of more than 45% during 

campaigns.  New exciting events have 

been included into the 45 hosted on the 

Island during the year, attracting more 

than 40,000 visitors.  A focus on weddings 

has seen a 10% increase in the most joyful 

of celebrations on Rottnest.

An educational approach to obtaining 

visitor compliance has resulted in fewer 

infringements.   Erosion control measures 

and improved visitor access have added 

to an overall improvement in park-related 

services.  Our rangers attended to 223 

wildlife events and were able to assist in 

the recovery of Rottnest Island bobtails 

illegally taken off the Island. 

Our work in the area of cultural heritage 

has also been acknowledged as winner 

of the WA State Heritage Awards 2014 

for Outstanding Conservation of a Non-

residential Place;  a Highly Commended 

for Outstanding Contribution to Heritage 

by a Public Organisation; and nomination 

to UNESCO Asia Pacific Cultural Heritage 

Conservation Awards.

I’d like to also congratulate Palassis 

Architects who won the Heritage 

Architecture award at the 2014 WA 

Architecture Awards for their work on 

the Rottnest Island Oliver Hill Battery.  

The architects were recognised for their  

meticulous care in both restoring and 

revealing the historical significance of the 

Oliver Hill Battery on Rottnest Island.

“ The $1.5million State Heritage 

Award winning WWII Coastal 

Defence project covered 11 

buildings, 4 gun emplacements, 

2 sets of tunnel structures, 

searchlight emplacement, fixed 

military hardware, walk trails 

and interpretive signage, located 

across many hectares of land  

and 3 isolated locations.”

I was extremely proud to receive three gold 

awards on behalf of the RIA at the Pacific 

Asia Travel Association (PATA) in China – 

for Tourism Marketing; Cultural Heritage 

and Sustainability.  This recognition from 

our peers in the international arena – up 

against such tourism bodies as the Hong 

Kong Tourism Board, underlines the 

achievements made towards our aim to 

become a world-recognised, sustainable, 

must-visit tourism destination.  

We have continued to implement our 

second Reconciliation Action Plan and 

are pleased with the reaction from 

community to initiatives such as the 

Weaving Workshops – which were 

enthusiastically attended and received 

very positive feedback.

In telling the story on our journey towards 

reconciliation, we have included a 

bush garden with interpretation about 

traditional lore.

In closing, I would once again like to 

thank the Board of the Authority for their 

support and guidance during the year. 

I also take the opportunity to thank my 

staff and contractors for another year 

of solid hard work and outstanding 

achievement, and to recognise  

the contribution from our stakeholders 

such as Boating Western Australia (BWA), 

the Rottnest Voluntary Guides Association  

(RVGA), the Rottnest Foundation, the 

Rottnest Island Chamber of Commerce 

(RICC) and the Rottnest 

Island Volunteer Fire  

and Rescue Service  

(RIVFR).

Paolo Amaranti 
Chief Executive  
Officer
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“ Rottnest Island won the WA 
Sustainability Award at the 
Tourism Awards for the second 
consecutive year”
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Enabling Legislation

The Rottnest Island Authority was 

established under the terms of the 

Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987  

(the Act) and administers the Rottnest 

Island Regulations 1988. 

Under the Act, members of the Rottnest 

Island Authority Board are appointed by 

the Governor to oversee the management 

and control of Rottnest Island.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible 

for the day-to-day operations of Rottnest 

Island, subject to the control of the Board, 

and is supported by a core permanent 

staff of 118 and temporary staff as 

required to meet seasonal demands.

Responsible Minister

The Minister responsible for the Rottnest 

Island Authority is the Hon Liza Harvey 

MLA, Minister for Tourism.

Our Vision

Rottnest Island is an internationally 

recognised, sustainable, must-visit 

tourism destination.

Our Mission

Grow visitor numbers and yield by 

providing best-in-class tourism products, 

experiences and service while enhancing 

Rottnest Island’s unique heritage and 

environment.

Operational Structure

Chief Executive Officer

Executive Services

General Manager 
Governance, 
Strategy and 

Support

General Manager 
Project and 

Contract Services

Manager 
Marine and 
Terrestrial 

Reserve

General Manager 
Sales, Marketing 

and Product 
Development

Organisational Chart

Rottnest Island  
Authority Members 

(Board)
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Administrative Legislation

The Rottnest Island Authority administers 

the Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987.

Other Key Legislation

Key legislation impacting on our 

operations includes;

• Financial Management Act 2006

• Public Sector Management Act 1994

• State Supply Commission Act 1991

Board Members

The Authority’s governing body, the 

Board, is appointed by the Governor on 

the nomination of the Minister for Tourism 

for terms not exceeding three years and 

members may be re-appointed. Members 

are selected according to their experience 

relevant to the Authority’s operations. 

Profiles of the members of the Board of 

the Authority, together with details of 

meeting attendance, are set out below.

Chairman

John Driscoll was 

appointed Chairman 

of the Board in 

July 2012. John’s 

qualifications include 

a Bachelor’s Degree 

in Economics and a 

Master of Business 

Administration. He became Chairman and 

Chief Executive Officer of Marketforce 

in 2003 following a 15-year career with 

Marketforce, commencing as Group Media 

Director in 1989, and reached the position 

of Managing Director in 2002.

John’s standing as one of the State’s 

leading marketers is reflected in his 

commitment to support organisations 

dedicated to improving professionalism 

in our industry. He is Chair of the Senior 

Advisory Panel of Marketing for the Curtin 

Business School, past Chairman of the 

Communications Council of Western 

Australia, Board Member of Trinity  

College and is on the Board of Wheelchair 

Sports WA.

John has been holidaying at Rottnest for 

almost 50 years and is an active member 

of Rottnest Island’s boating community. 

He is a past Committee Member of the 

Rottnest Channel Swim Association and is 

a regular competitor in this event.

Deputy Chairman 

Stephen Lauder was 

appointed in July 

2012. Stephen is 

an experienced and 

passionate Western 

Australian based 

businessman.

He was the founder and owner of AHS 

Hospitality, Australia’s largest provider 

of outsourced labour services to the 

Australian accommodation hotel industry, 

employing over 4000 staff.

Previously a state winner of the Ernst and 

Young Entrepreneur of the Year and more 

recently, a regional judge for this award 

for the last three years, Stephen now owns 

and is Chairman of a private boutique 

investment company.

Stephen invests in many private and 

public companies with an expertise in 

the outsourcing industry and has been 

a member of the World Presidents 

Organisation since 2004, undertaking 

many roles including running a successful 

mentoring program. He is also a fellow 

of the Australian Institute of Company 

Directors.
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Robert McDonald 

was appointed in 

July 2011. Rob’s 

formal qualifications 

include a Bachelor 

of Business as well 

as being a CPA 

and MAICD.  Rob 

is the Chairman of the Rottnest Island 

Authority Finance and Audit Committee. 

He has broad commercial experience 

in finance, human resources, policy 

development and information technology. 

Rob's previous employment positions 

have been as the Executive Director and 

Director of Finance with Western Australia 

Police, Chief Executive Officer of the State 

Supply Commission and Director, Agency 

Resources in the State Treasury. 

Rob is the Chair, Governing Council, North 

Metropolitan Health Service; Board Chair, 

The Centre for Cerebral Palsy; and a Non-

Executive Director of Community First 

International.   Rob is also the principal 

of Tiderock Consulting, specialising in 

management, organisational and financial 

reviews of government organisations.

 

Suzanne Hunt  

was appointed in 

May 2010. Suzie 

has a Bachelor of 

Applied Science, 

a Bachelor of 

Architecture (Hons) 

and is a registered 

architect with the Architects Board of WA 

and the Architects Registration Council of 

the UK (ARCUK). 

Suzie is the principal of a boutique 

architectural and interior design practice 

specializing in both contemporary and 

heritage projects in WA. She has over 28 

years’ experience in architectural and 

interior design, documentation, contract 

administration and strategic management 

in all sectors in both Australia and the UK. 

Suzie has been involved with architectural 

conservation and adaptive reuse as 

a design architect and project leader 

on government and private sector 

projects and a heritage advisor to 

local governments. She has sat on the 

Development Committee of the Heritage 

Council of WA, the Enquiry By Design for 

the Town of Cottesloe and is currently a 

member of the Urban Design Advisory 

Panel for the City of Melville. 

Sally Hollis  

was appointed 

in December 

2010. Sally has 

worked in tourism, 

hospitality and 

event management 

industries in 

Western Australia and the United 

Kingdom. She was a founding director 

of the Australian Tourism Accreditation 

Association and the Executive Officer of 

Tourism Council Western Australia. She is 

currently the Senior Projects Manager at 

Tourism Council WA.

Sally has sat on advisory boards for 

the Department of Environment and 

Conservation, the Pacific Asia Travel 

Association, Tourism WA, WA Hospitality 

and Tourism Industry Training Council, 

the Western Australian Indigenous 

Tourism Operators Committee and the 

Federal Tourism Minister’s Accreditation 

Consultative Committee. She is a regular 

participant in the Rottnest Channel Swim 

and the Swim Thru Rotto.

Dr Peter Hick 

was appointed in 

August 2011. He 

is a retired CSIRO 

Environmental 

Geoscientist 

who specialised 

in spectral and 

biophysical research for terrestrial 

and aquatic environments. Peter has 

specialist skills in the understanding of 

the environmental effects of resource 

extraction, mining and agriculture, 

coastal geomorphology and has written 

more than 140 publications with a strong 

environmental perspective.

Peter's PhD was awarded in the field of 

Marine Physics and his recent research 

has concentrated on the statistics 

of localised effects of climate and 

biodiversity. As a keen boat enthusiast 

and yachtsman, Peter has had significant 

involvement in developing the boating 

management strategy and the feasibility 

of a marina at Rottnest. He has published 

books on sailing and maritime history, and 

supports the expansion of the heritage and 

history values of the Island.
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Declaration of Interest

The Board has a standing declaration of 

interest process, where Board agenda 

papers are not distributed to those 

members who have declared or perceived 

interest in relation to any matter. Members 

are excluded from participating in Board 

business relating to these interests. In 

addition to this process, Board members 

declare other interests from time to time 

as matters arise. 

Directors’ and Officers’  
Liability Insurance 

An insurance premium has been taken out 

to indemnify Board members against any 

liability incurred under sections 13 or 14 

of the Statutory Corporations (Liability of 

Directors) Act 1996. 

Finance and Audit Committee 

The objective of the Finance and Audit 

Committee is to report and, where 

appropriate, make recommendations 

to the Board on financial, audit and risk 

related matters, to monitor financial 

management and to ensure risk 

management is effective.

The Committee met on 11 occasions 

during the year. 

Member First Appointed
Number of applicable 
meetings for 2013-14

Meetings 
attended

Designation

John Driscoll December 2010 11 11 Chairman appointed by the Governor on the nomination of the Minister under S6(1)(a) of the Act.

Stephen Lauder July 2012 11 11 Deputy Chairman appointed by the Minister under S6(3) of the Act.

Suzanne Hunt May 2010 12 12
Member appointed under S6(2)(b) of the Act – a person who has practical knowledge of and 
experience in the preservation of buildings of historic value.

Sally Hollis December 2010 12 12
Member appointed under S6(2)(a) of the Act – a person who has practical knowledge of and 
experience in the conservation of the environment.

Robert McDonald July 2011 12 12 Member appointed under S6(2)(c) of the Act – a person who is of sound commercial experience.

Peter Hick August 2011 12 12
Member appointed under S6(2)(d) of the Act – a person who is a regular user of the Island for 
recreational purposes.
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Agency Performance Framework

The Performance Management Framework is structured in accordance with the requirements of the Government’s Outcome-Based Management Framework for public sector agencies. 

The RIA is classified as a Public Non-Financial Corporation by the Department of Treasury. This implies that it is required to be self-funding and not rely on State Budget funding for its 

commercial operating expenses. The Authority is therefore required to act in a commercial manner to fulfil its functions. 

Rottnest Island Authority’s Outcome-Based Management Framework 

Government Goal: Social and Environmental Responsibility 

Ensuring that economic activity is managed in a socially and environmentally responsible manner for the long-term benefit of the State. 

Rottnest Island Authority’s Desired Outcome Key Performance Indicators Services Provided to the Community

Rottnest Island visitors enjoy recreational and holiday 
experiences in healthy, natural and cultural environments.

Effectiveness 
• Visitor satisfaction with the Rottnest Island experience

• Health of Island’s natural environment 

• Health of Island’s cultural heritage

1. Recreational and holiday services

Efficiency 
• Average cost of recreational and holiday services  

provided per visitor

• Average cost of natural environment and cultural heritage 
management per reserve hectare

2. Natural environment and cultural  
heritage management

Shared Responsibilities With Other Agencies

The RIA does not share any key service-related responsibilities with other agencies. However, it does work in partnership with other government providers servicing Rottnest Island, 

including the:

• Western Australia Police

• Department of Health

• Department of Education

• Department of Fire and  
Emergency Services

• Department of Transport

• Department of Water

• Department of Fisheries; and

• Department of Parks and Wildlife

Performance Management Framework
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“ The RIA delivered $8.4m in 
works projects and improved 
the Island’s buildings and 
infrastructure to enhance  
the visitor experience”
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Report on Operations 

Major Achievements 2013/14

• During the 2013/14 financial year the RIA achieved an accounting profit of $0.6 million 

and a positive net cashflow.

• Rottnest Island was again recognised at the WA Tourism Awards winning a Gold Award 

for Specialist Tourism Services for the Island’s Bike & Hire service and a Gold Award  

for Sustainability for the second year in a row.

• The RIA received three Gold Awards at the Pacific Asia Travel Association (PATA) in 

China for Tourism Marketing; Cultural Heritage and Sustainability.

• Our work in the area of cultural heritage has also been acknowledged as winner of the WA 

State Heritage Awards 2014 for Outstanding Conservation of a Non- residential Place; a 

Highly Commended for Outstanding Contribution to Heritage by a Public Organisation; 

and nomination to UNESCO Asia Pacific Cultural Heritage Conservation Awards.

• Rottnest Island sustainability initiatives were recognised in 2014 by the Fremantle 

Chamber of Commerce Mayor’s Award.

• New Rottnest Island branding was released with a core brand positioning statement 

“Rottnest Is the simple pleasures in life”.

Governance, Strategy and Support

Highlights 2013/14

• Achieved a net accounting profit in 2013-14 through responsible spending and cost 

controls in a challenging economic environment.

• Rottnest Island Management Plan 2009-14 finalised with a total of over $17 million 

expended on planned initiatives over the five-year term. 

• Draft Rottnest Island Management Plan 2014-19 developed and public comment 

process conducted. 

• Proposed changes to the Rottnest Island Authority Act submitted to Government for 

consideration.

• Commissioning of the first public Wi-Fi network on Rottnest Island for visitor and 

business use.

• Upgrade of the on-line Rottnest Island Accommodation Booking System. 

• Implementation of a new Financial Management System.

• Cross cultural awareness training for staff and volunteers continued in 2013-14 with 

87% of staff having completed the course.  
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Information and Communication Technology (ICT) Strategy

The ICT Strategy was designed as a blueprint for the development of a totally new business 

environment for Rottnest Island, specifically to support and drive the business by enhancing 

and extending the visitor experience. The principal objective of this Strategy is to create a 

“One Rottnest” business environment through the sharing of information from a secure, 

single data image which will strengthen decision-making by delivering consistent, reliable 

and accurate, real-time information to all parts of the Authority. This enhanced accessibility 

to core information will better inform managers and solidify business decisions, enabling 

the Authority’s Business Units to work together more closely on improving the visitor 

experience.

The ICT Strategy recognises visitor management as the highest profile commercial 

activity of the Authority. ‘Accommodation’ is a key revenue stream for the Authority.

The Strategy will provide tools to help better understand our markets and their 

preferences and use this to better promote the uniqueness of our product. This 

understanding then further enhances our capability to better invest in essential skills and 

infrastructure for ongoing improvement.

On a technical level, the Strategy is focused on moving to near-total mobility and reach. 

The architecture of the Enterprise Resourcing Project (ERP) is fully on-line and will be 

available through a web interface on multiple platforms. Systems being implemented are 

resilient by nature (addressing business continuity) and designed to minimise wastage, 

reduce paper usage and support sustainability initiatives. All new systems will be available 

on-line and new facilities currently being added to OPERA  will use the Island Wi-Fi 

structure for management (cleaning and damage reporting). Visitors will not only be able 

to book on-line from mobile devices for Accommodation Services but for other visitation 

services through the planned Day Visitor system.
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Initiative
Total

Budget 
$

Actual 
Cost

$

1 Review the Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987

Various options for governing Rottnest Island have been explored and an extensive review of the Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987 was 
conducted.  Proposed Act amendments have been conceptually identified and are being considered by Government.

180,000 50,000

2 Tourism and recreation strategy

An integrated approach to developing this and other strategies identified in the RIMP was conducted through a series of staff and stakeholder 
workshops that identified Island values and pressures. In 2012-13, the RIA carried out a comprehensive market research project to survey 
visitors and non-visitors to the Island. The results of this survey and other background information have been incorporated into various planning 
processes such as the Strategic Marketing Plan and used to guide marketing campaigns.

160,000 208,000

3 Twenty-year vision for Rottnest Island

Extensive research has been conducted to assist the development of a long term vision for the Island.  Workshops were conducted to identify 
Island values and sustainable visitor capacity. Major market research has been conducted and environmental and economic threats have been 
investigated. Based on the results of these research projects, a 20-year master development plan for Rottnest Island has been identified and 
forms part of the Draft Rottnest Island Management Plan 2014-19.

0 40,000

4 Sustainability accreditation

The RIA and its partners are working towards creating a sustainable Rottnest and the RIA has won several awards for its work in this area, 
including winning gold and silver awards in the international PATA Awards and WA Tourism Awards. As well, the RIA has benchmarked its 
operations against EarthCheck standards, the largest environmental management and certification program in use by the tourism industry. 
The RIA has achieved and maintained its Bronze accreditation for three years based on benchmarking and monitoring of its resource use and 
sustainability management activities. The RIA will continue to work towards Silver accreditation with the preparation of an Environmental 
Management System and aims to achieve Gold Certification by 2019.

175,000 173,460

Rottnest Island Management Plan 2009–14 

The period of the Rottnest Island 

Management Plan (RIMP) 2009-14 

has now ended.  The direction of Island 

management in the RIMP 2009-14 was 

based on a theme of environmental, social 

and financial sustainability and included 

nine policy areas and 25 initiatives. 

Through each five-year management plan 

the RIA seeks to maintain the balance 

between the functions set out in the 

Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987 – 

providing holiday and recreation facilities 

for visitors, and protecting and maintaining 

the natural and built environment of the 

Rottnest Island A-class Reserve. 

The RIMP 2009-14 commenced operations 

with an allocated budget of $14.5 million. 

The RIA has effectively delivered on 

each of the RIMP initiatives with the vast 

majority either completed or significantly 

progressed. Funding in some instances 

has been reallocated to other initiatives to 

meet operational and compliance related 

requirements.

In total, the RIA spent over $17 million over 

the five year period to implement the RIMP. 

The RIA has developed a draft five year 

management plan for Rottnest Island, the 

first five year instalment of a 20-year vision 

for Rottnest Island. 
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“ The RIA was a winner at the 
2014 State Heritage Awards for 
Outstanding Conservation and 
was highly commended as  
a Public Organisation”
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Initiative
Total

Budget 
$

Actual 
Cost

$

5 Sustainable visitor research

A project to determine sustainable visitor use of sites in the Rottnest Island Reserve (outside the Settlement area) was completed during 2008-
10 and involved site assessments, visitor surveys, stakeholder input, data analysis and developing visitor and site management scenarios. The 
results of these activities provided a basis for the development and implementation of an action plan for recreation planning and environment 
management on Rottnest Island. 

50,000 50,000

6 Development planning controls

Development planning policies, processes and guidelines were developed and approved by the Minister for Tourism in May 2010, and 
subsequently made publicly available.  A development assessment committee was established to assess and recommend on individual 
development applications and a function was established to coordinate the processing of applications according to accepted standards. The 
development assessment committee has been effective in assessing development applications, including the RIA’s own developments.

190,000 160,000

7 Address external environmental and economic threats

Threats and adaptation strategies to manage the potential impacts of climate change and other potentially adverse factors were identified 
during sustainability workshops run by Curtin University in May 2010. Since then a program of information gathering, research and strategy 
development has been implemented, focusing on high risk areas. The structure of the Island’s coastal areas has been identified for future 
coastal development planning and baseline benchmarking of environmental conditions for the whole Island has been completed. A preliminary 
climate change impact study was conducted to identify potential and emerging impacts. 

175,000 278,000

8 Aboriginal reconciliation

The RIA has successfully delivered on most initiatives from its Reconciliation Action Plans 2008-11 and 2012-15. The annual Wadjemup Cup 
event has been conducted on Rottnest Island for seven consecutive years in partnership with the Clontarf Academy. In 2009 Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Island veterans representing Australia at war were specifically remembered at the Anzac Day ceremony on Rottnest Island, for the 
first time. 

Other initiatives included the employment of Aboriginal trainees, support for Indigenous Green Corps cadets, provision of community grants 
to assist Aboriginal people access the Island and delivery of Cross Cultural training to RIA staff and volunteers to increase understanding of 
Aboriginal people and their culture.  Aboriginal educational activities and products have been presented though the school educational program 
and other community events. 

450,000 439,000
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Initiative
Total

Budget 
$

Actual 
Cost

$

9 Maintain quality of RIA accommodation

Significant refurbishments and upgrades to RIA accommodation have included refurbishments to 30 units at Geordie and Longreach Bays 
and selected South Thomson units, Caroline Thomson cabins and heritage cottages. There was a major refurbishment of the Commander 
Cottages at Kingstown. New barbeques were installed at Bathurst, South and North Thomson villas and Governor’s Circle cottages.  The villas 
at South Thomson, Bathurst, Fays and Geordie Bays were repainted and 32” digital televisions installed to all masonry units across the Island.  
Other improvements include the recovering of sofas, new furnishings and curtains, repair of floors, interior and exterior damp treatments, and 
improvements to exterior lighting.

10,000,000 7,041,700

10 Provide a range of visitor accommodation

Negotiations with various proponents, both local and international, for accommodation developments on the Island have been conducted over 
recent years.  The RIA is continuing to engage informally with interested parties in exploring options for a resort development in the Longreach 
Bay area and discussions regarding the proposed development of Rottnest Lodge are continuing. The RIA carried out a significant upgrade and 
extension of the Rottnest Island campground and facilities. The campground now includes 43 sites, an outdoor cooking facility with sinks and 
barbecues, new ablutions with disabled access and improved landscaping.  

0 1,444,000

11 Upgrade Kingstown 

Improvements to Kingstown were implemented during 2011-12, including painting and improving the recreation and security facilities.  A 
business review of the operations and commercial viability of the Kingstown Barracks facility was conducted. This resulted in the RIA seeking 
expressions of interest from the market for uses of the facility. The RIA is currently considering the proposals submitted.

0 41,700

12 Review visitor accommodation management options

Alternative approaches to managing and delivering Rottnest Island accommodation were considered, including a review of the RIA’s 
accommodation business model. Expressions of interest have been sought to determine market interest and options for the use of the 
Kingstown facility and other areas of RIA accommodation may be considered in the coming years.

0 100,000

13 Expand recreational activities

A significant number of new or upgraded recreational activities and facilities have been implemented. Highlights include resurfaced tennis 
courts at Geordie Bay and Kingstown, the Fun Park received a makeover, an outdoor table tennis facility was installed and the golf course 
and bowling green upgraded.  The RIA’s hire bicycle fleet was renewed and new hire products introduced – electric bicycles, snorkel, mask 
and fin sets, scooters and skateboards are now available for hire, and four new electric gophers were purchased for visitors requiring mobility 
assistance.  In addition, several new private businesses have also commenced operations on the Island during recent years. A water fun park 
was established, a guided Segways tour is now operating, and three new food and beverage outlets have opened.

0 2,380,000
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Initiative
Total

Budget 
$

Actual 
Cost

$

14 Improve visitor facilities

Many improvements have been implemented, including new eco-friendly toilet facilities at Parker Point, improved directional and visitor 
signage around the Settlement, replacement of the West End Boardwalk, new playground equipment and upgrade to the Geordie Bay Jetty.  
The Rottnest Island Visitor Centre was extended to provide greater space and now includes six new information screens and the assistance 
of a volunteer guide to meet and assist visitors. A microwave link from the mainland to the Island enables Wi-Fi internet connection for Island 
visitors. Coastal protection and rehabilitation works were carried out at Henrietta Rocks in partnership with volunteer groups which also 
assisted the RIA to implement several stages of the Wadjemup Walk Trail. The total length of walk trails constructed to date is 17.6kms. 

410,000 1,760,000

15 Marine facilities - Boating Management Strategy 

Based on the results of the boating surveys and marine related pressures on the Island, in 2009-10 a beach anchoring system was installed 
in Thomson Bay to manage small craft staying overnight. In 2013-14 the RIA released its Boating Management Strategy following a public 
comment period with over 200 submissions received. Economic viability research and environmental impact studies for a commercial marina 
development have commenced and a preliminary concept design has been prepared. 

220,000 803,000

16 Review responsibility for utilities, major infrastructure and non-commercial services

The provision of utility services on Rottnest Island requires significant capital investment, incurs high operating costs and requires expertise to 
meet demanding regulatory requirements. The RIA attempted to outsource the provision of utilities management and other essential services 
on the Island during the past several years, but it has been problematic.  The RIA has adopted a strategy to increase the level of renewable 
energy production to around 45%.  The addition of this extra capacity will reduce operating costs and improve the appeal of the Island's utilities, 
operations for potential industry providers. 

0 292,000

17 Terrestrial Management Strategy

Workshops were conducted with external and internal stakeholders to identify the values and pressures impacting the Rottnest Island Reserve. 
Based on this information, a Terrestrial Management Strategy has been developed. The two primary enabling components of this Strategy 
are the Environmental Management System and the Conservation Action Plan, both of which are in implementation stage. Results from 
Conservation Action Planning are available through the annual reporting process.

220,000 205,000
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Initiative
Total

Budget 
$

Actual 
Cost

$

14 Improve visitor facilities

Many improvements have been implemented, including new eco-friendly toilet facilities at Parker Point, improved directional and visitor 
signage around the Settlement, replacement of the West End Boardwalk, new playground equipment and upgrade to the Geordie Bay Jetty.  
The Rottnest Island Visitor Centre was extended to provide greater space and now includes six new information screens and the assistance 
of a volunteer guide to meet and assist visitors. A microwave link from the mainland to the Island enables Wi-Fi internet connection for Island 
visitors. Coastal protection and rehabilitation works were carried out at Henrietta Rocks in partnership with volunteer groups which also 
assisted the RIA to implement several stages of the Wadjemup Walk Trail. The total length of walk trails constructed to date is 17.6kms. 

410,000 1,760,000

15 Marine facilities - Boating Management Strategy 

Based on the results of the boating surveys and marine related pressures on the Island, in 2009-10 a beach anchoring system was installed 
in Thomson Bay to manage small craft staying overnight. In 2013-14 the RIA released its Boating Management Strategy following a public 
comment period with over 200 submissions received. Economic viability research and environmental impact studies for a commercial marina 
development have commenced and a preliminary concept design has been prepared. 

220,000 803,000

16 Review responsibility for utilities, major infrastructure and non-commercial services

The provision of utility services on Rottnest Island requires significant capital investment, incurs high operating costs and requires expertise to 
meet demanding regulatory requirements. The RIA attempted to outsource the provision of utilities management and other essential services 
on the Island during the past several years, but it has been problematic.  The RIA has adopted a strategy to increase the level of renewable 
energy production to around 45%.  The addition of this extra capacity will reduce operating costs and improve the appeal of the Island's utilities, 
operations for potential industry providers. 

0 292,000

17 Terrestrial Management Strategy

Workshops were conducted with external and internal stakeholders to identify the values and pressures impacting the Rottnest Island Reserve. 
Based on this information, a Terrestrial Management Strategy has been developed. The two primary enabling components of this Strategy 
are the Environmental Management System and the Conservation Action Plan, both of which are in implementation stage. Results from 
Conservation Action Planning are available through the annual reporting process.

220,000 205,000

Initiative
Total

Budget 
$

Actual 
Cost

$

18 Implement the Marine Management Strategy

Various projects and improvements have been implemented in accordance with the Marine Management Strategy. Ongoing management of the 
five sanctuary zones has continued through surveillance, compliance patrols and maintenance of marine-based sanctuary zone markers. The RIA 
participated in the Metropolitan Fish Monitoring Collaborative Working Group with other relevant government agencies and has been instrumental in 
the success of several prosecutions by the Department of Fisheries relating to fishing offences. Marine-themed interpretation has been built into the 
West End Boardwalk and a Marine Compliance Plan has been implemented. The RIA continues to conduct education activities as part of school and 
community programs to raise awareness of the Island’s marine environment and conservation strategies.  In 2013-14 a community based annual reef 
fish and marine invertebrate survey was conducted and a marine debris survey was conducted by Earthwatch volunteers.

150,000 150,000

19 Education and interpretation for environmental management

Community education material, exhibitions and interpretive signage has been produced to reflect key messages for various campaigns including 
sustainability, protecting Island wildlife, waste management and Island facilities. A campaign engaging visitors on issues such as interacting 
with wildlife in the settlement was implemented, education programs developed for school and youth groups, interpretative signage installed for 
the Wadjemup Walk Trail at West End, Bickley Bay Walk and the Lakes Walk, and new heritage street signs have been erected.  

150,000 76,700

20 Rottnest Island Research Strategy

Funding was allocated for external parties to conduct relevant research on Rottnest Island in accordance with the RIA’s Research Program and 
most years there are between 20 and 30 active research projects being carried out on the Island. Various research has been carried out relating 
to the frog population, woodland bird species, rock lobster, groundwater, seagrass, and also the freshwater/saltwater interaction on the survival 
of fauna. Collaborative research projects with the Department of Parks and Wildlife and University of WA were undertaken for demographic and 
genetic studies of Rottnest quokkas. 

200,000 147,837

21 Cultural heritage conservation

Several cultural heritage projects were implemented or progressed, including ongoing maintenance and repair programs to heritage buildings, 
structures and archaeological sites. Conservation works include repairs of the historic wall around Hotel Rottnest, stone repair and lime 
washing to heritage buildings in the Settlement, structural works and painting at Kingstown barracks, re-roofing of the Old Mill and Hay Store 
and specialised conservation works to the World War II military installations at Oliver Hill and Bickley Point. An interpretive orchard was planted 
behind Lomas Cottage. Public programs supported include the 75th Anniversary parade of Military Heritage on Rottnest Island, Heritage Week, 
Anzac Day and the Heritage Festival.  The Winter After Dark series was developed and the history of Aboriginal incarceration shown to Island 
visitors through photo exhibitions and theatrical presentations. 

The RIA has won several awards for its heritage conservation activities, including winner of the 2009 and 2010 State Heritage Awards for 
conservation of the Governor’s residence and for outstanding contribution to conservation of the State’s heritage, and winner of the 2014 State 
Heritage Awards for outstanding conservation of the Rottnest Island World War II defence establishment.  

1,105,000 1,124,000
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Initiative
Total

Budget 
$

Actual 
Cost

$

22 Education and interpretation products

Several new projects were developed including the introduction of a new audio commentary for the Rottnest tour buses, distribution of an 
education activities brochure to all schools in Western Australia and the development of self-delivery packages for school teachers. The Open 
House and After Dark heritage programs were delivered in 2012 and 2013, and a guide to Aboriginal history has been developed and printed.  
Various interpretive signage has been installed across the Island and fifty geocaching sites around the Island were developed and launched in 
conjunction with Nature Play WA activities on the Island. 

340,000 64,000

23 Improve customer service

The RIA’s customer service values are communicated to front-line staff through regular training.  These values are also made available to the 
Island’s private businesses via online training and Island education packages, and to the major volunteer groups through workshops. The RIA 
has Tourism Council WA and Visitor Centre Association of WA membership and accreditation which require the achievement of high quality 
standards in service provision and operations. Visitor satisfaction surveys are carried out quarterly by external survey consultants and post-
departure online survey for all accommodation guests is operating. 

0 46,500

24 Focus on safety and security

The development of strategies and support actions to address visitor safety and security on the Island remains a priority for the RIA in 
partnership with other emergency service agencies.  Significant actions have been implemented over the five years including the installation of 
a hi-definition CCTV system, the introduction of infringement notices for anti-social behaviours, and increased security presence during youth 
events.  A full time security officer has been engaged to perform security patrols, and also a full time fire and emergency services manager 
engaged to oversee emergency management and the operation of Island based fire and emergency services. Emergency response exercises 
have been conducted with external emergency service agencies and Rottnest Island’s firefighting capability has been improved through training 
and new equipment.

150,000 270,000

25 Support Volunteers

The RIA continues to drive relationships with volunteers through quarterly network meetings and providing opportunities that enable 
volunteers to engage in tourism, heritage and environmental activities on the Island. Volunteering opportunities have been expanded through 
the implementation of Island fauna monitoring programs and additional school holiday activities.  The Rottnest Island Volunteer Guides were 
provided with a refurbished new headquarters on the Island, and the RIA continues to support their administrative functions and initiatives 
through resources and funding.  

150,000 161,000

TOTAL COSTS 14,475,000 17,505,896

NB : Operational funding was used for additional expenditure and accounts for the variation in totals.
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Highlights 2013/14

$8.4m was spent on capital improvements 

and asset maintenance programs including:

• Roof remedial works on 65 

accommodation units at Geordie Bay, 

Longreach and Bathurst including the 

replacement of roof sheeting with new 

ultra colour bond sheeting.

• Refurbishment of Campground 

facilities including new camp kitchen 

and ablutions.

• Resurfacing of Bathurst  

Tennis Courts.

• Interior refurbishment of 29 units in 

Geordie and Longreach Bays.

• Extension of the Visitor Centre.

• Installation of a new 250kL/day 

containerised seawater  

desalination unit.

• Improvements to infrastructure 

including sewer pump station 

upgrades, seawater and freshwater 

bore redevelopment, purchase of a 

power station fuel tank, waste water 

plant dewatering improvements and 

road repairs.

Infrastructure, Utilities & Services 

The RIA is the third biggest provider of energy in Western Australia. The RIA provides all utilities on Rottnest Island, including power, 

potable water, waste water, waste disposal and gas. Additionally, the RIA manages and maintains the Island’s infrastructure, which 

includes 50km of bituminised roads, 6.4km of railway line, $108m of buildings, seven jetties and a CASA approved airport. Some statistics 

associated with this are shown below.

Summary of utility services and infrastructure management provided by the RIA during 2013/14

Item Quantity Supplied
Production Cost  

to the RIA
Rottnest Island Tariff

Mainland Tariff 
(Metro)

Power 4,980,117 kWh $1,810,519* $0.43/kW/hr $0.26/kW/hr  
plus supply charge

Potable water 112,886 kilolitres $942,738* $4.17/kL $1.38/kL min. to  
$2.60/kL max.

Waste management 1138 tonnes of waste $646,384*

Gas 297,085 litres $533,073* $2.06/m3 – Commercial 
$158.99 –  Residential 

Bottle

$5.26/m3 

$110.27 –  Residential 
Bottle

Waste water 57,587kL $320,013* $5.56k/L

Fuel (transport to the Island)

Diesel Diesel – 1,147,767L $1,740,373.02** $1.92 $1.61

Unleaded Unleaded – 90,279L $135,902.71** $1.89 $1.52

Premium unleaded Premium – 58,391L $91,293.00** $1.96 $1.63

* Excludes capital, depreciation, renewable energy production, compliance and audit costs.

** Excludes capital, depreciation, renewable energy production, compliance, audit, delivery, barge and GST costs.

Project & Contract Services
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Project & Contract Services

During 2013/14, the RIA continued to 

manage the provision of key facilities 

operations and utility services on the 

Island. The RIA delivered $8.4m in works 

projects and maintained the Island’s 

buildings and infrastructure to enhance 

the visitor experience.

Facilities & Utilities Management

The RIA manages the provision of utility 

services on the Island and maintenance of 

all built infrastructure through contracted 

service providers. These contractors 

(Programmed Facility Management) 

are specifically engaged to maintain the 

Island’s buildings and equipment and to 

operate utilities, public area cleaning, 

waste management and general transport 

services including luggage delivery at a 

total cost of $10m in 2013/14.

Sustainability

The RIA is committed to increasing the 

environmental, social and economic 

sustainability of the Island through a 

program of continued improvement, 

education and capital investment. In 

2013, 630kWs of solar panels were 

acquired and are destined to become a 

solar farm, increasing the penetration of 

renewable energy to 45%. The RIA will be 

looking to identify, prioritise and schedule 

economically viable actions to both 

reduce electricity consumption through 

energy efficiency measures and increase 

renewable energy generation. 

Power

All power requirements for the Island are 

generated on-site using a combination 

of diesel generators and a 600kW wind 

turbine. The RIA generates, distributes 

and retails power under licence from the 

Economic Regulation Authority.

The total power generated during the 

year was 5m kWh, of which 1.3m kWh 

(29%) was generated by the Island’s wind 

turbine, and the balance supplied through 

diesel generation. The wind turbine 

generated the equivalent of 341,000 litres 

of diesel fuel, saving the RIA an estimated 

$535,677.

Energy Production Infrastructure works 

undertaken during 2013/14 include the;

• Installation of a new 250kL/day 

containerised seawater  

desalination unit.

• Design of a new fuel farm for the 

Rottnest Island Power Station. 

• Purchase of a new Power Station  

fuel tank.

• Acquisition of solar panels from 

Western Power for future renewable 

energy generation works.
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Water Services

The RIA provides potable water and treats waste water on the Island, operating under a 

Department of Water licence and Environmental Protection Authority guidelines.

112,886 kilolitres of potable water were produced during the year, 80% from desalination and 

the remainder from groundwater bores. Potable water is stored in a series of tanks connected 

to the water distribution network and undergoes a two stage chlorination process.

All waste water is biologically treated at the Rottnest Island Waste Water Treatment 

Plant using a cyclic activated sludge process. A small percentage is currently recycled 

for irrigation purposes on the cricket oval. 57,587 kilolitres of waste water were treated 

during the year.

Liquid Petroleum Gas

A mix of reticulated and bottled liquid petroleum gas (LPG) is used to provide gas on 

the Island including the RIA’s accommodation facilities (e.g. hot water systems and 

cooking facilities), as well as a range of appliances used by visitors and residents, such as 

barbecues. Most commercial businesses operating on the Island also utilise LPG for their 

operations. During the year 297,085 litres of gas were used on the Island.

Waste Management

Approximately 1,138 tonnes of waste is generated on the Island each year of which 29% 

is recycled. Waste suitable for recycling is separated prior to transportation and includes 

plastics, glass, paper, cardboard, oils, tyres, metals and bio solids. The RIA’s waste 

management strategy has resulted in reduced usage of the Island landfill site and the 

majority of waste produced being transported to the mainland.

Communication to our visitors to gain support and buy-in is an important part of 

sustainability practices on the Island.

Licensing

As one of the largest providers of utilities and to comply with Government regulations, the 

RIA is required to maintain the following licences and conditions with regard to its utilities and 

major infrastructure.

Function Renewal Period

Electrical Supply Licence (Integrated Regional Licence) 30 years

Electrical Services (Power Reticulation) 30 years

Electrical Contractors Licence 1 year

Communications Two-Way Radio Repeater 1 year

Communications Maritime Coast 1 year

Communications Maritime Ship 1 year

Water Operating Licence (Potable, Drainage and Sewerage) 20 years

Waste Water Treatment Plant License 5 years

Ground Water 10 years

Rottnest Island railway – accredited owner/operator licence 1 year

Thomson Bay main jetty licence 3 years

Thomson Bay Pipeline Fuel Jetty 1 year

Land Fill site and composting 3 years

Dangerous Goods 3 years

Waste Management 5 years

Gas Trading and Distribution 1 year
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“ The RIA’s waste management 
strategy has resulted in reduced 
usage of the Island landfill 
site and the majority of waste 
produced is being transported  
to the mainland”
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Highlights 2013/14

• Rottnest Island wins State Tourism 

Sustainability Award for a second year.

• Wadjemup Walk Trail wins Pacific Asia 

Tourism Association Ecotourism  

Gold Award.

• Completion of Bickley Section of 

Wadjemup Walk Trail.

• Completion of Vincent Lake boardwalk 

as part of Lakes Section of Wadjemup 

Walk Trail.

• Restoration of 0.45 hectares of coastal 

dune, 7.59 hectares of woodland/

woodland heath and 0.12ha of wetland.

• Development of a Ground Water 

Operating Strategy.

• Maintained Earthcheck Bronze 

Benchmarking Status for 2012/2013.

• Developed Golf Course Environmental 

Management System.

Natural Environment 

Rottnest Island’s marine and terrestrial 

reserve comprises 1,859 hectares of 

land and 3,800 hectares of surrounding 

waters. The RIA manages the biodiversity 

conservation, research and monitoring 

programs, environmental protection and 

ecological restoration, including coastal 

dune management. 

Terrestrial Conservation 

The RIA continued to manage the 

terrestrial area of the reserve by:

• Completing a baseline survey of 

floristic species. 

• Viability surveys of focal conservation 

targets.

• Development of Rottnest Island 

herbarium.

• Re-vegetating 0.45 hectares of coastal 

dune with a total of 7,547 plants, 7.59 

hectares of woodland/woodland heath 

with a total of 20,661 plants, and 

0.12ha of wetland with a total of  

975 plants.

• Undertaking seed collection, seed 

treatment, maintaining seed stores and 

plant propagation with volunteers. 

• Mapping and undertaking a baseline 

survey of littoral vegetation.

• Long term shorebird (including 

migratory birds) and bushbird surveys. 

• Long term frog monitoring.

• Completed a feasibility analysis  

for Ramsar.

Emergency Services 

Emergency preparedness and 

development of response plans for 

the Island are coordinated through 

the Rottnest Island Local Emergency 

Management Committee (LEMC).  

The LEMC membership includes:

• Rottnest Island Authority 

• Western Australia Police

• Department of Fire and  

Emergency Services (DFES)

• Department for Child Protection

• Department of Heath

• Major Facilities maintenance 

contractor - Programmed Facility 

Management (PFM).

This committee met three times in 

2013/14. 

In October 2013, a Risk, Safety and 

Emergency Services Manager was 

employed by the RIA on a two year 

contract. The position is both operational 

and administrative in nature, and is 

responsible for ensuring the fire and 

emergency planning, preparedness, 

response and recovery capability is 

appropriate for the requirements of the 

Island. This includes management and 

leadership of the Rottnest Island Volunteer 

Fire and Rescue Service (RIVFRS), which is 

an RIA-operated private fire brigade.

During 2013/14, RIVFRS numbers were 

increased to a maximum of 25 for the peak 

bushfire season. Since the appointment of 

the Risk, Safety and Emergency Services 

Manager, 27 RIVFRS training sessions 

were conducted across a range of fire 

operations competencies.

A joint services emergency response 

exercise was conducted in November 

2013. The exercise tested mainland 

support arrangements and Rottnest Island 

incident management arrangements. 

Marine & Terrestrial Reserve 
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The exercise successfully achieved 

its aim of testing the Rottnest Island 

Mutual Assistance Manual, as referred 

to by the DFES – RIA Memorandum of 

Understanding.

In 2013/14, the RIVFRS delivered a 

complete urban firefighting, bushfire 

fighting and emergency services response 

capability. The RIVFRS responded to a 

total of 27 incidents as of 31 May 2014, 

and achieved a ranking of 8th in WA for 

frequency of responses to Direct Brigade 

Alarms in January 2014. 

A significant scrub fire caused by a pole 

top fire was responded to by the RIVFRS. 

The fire was contained within one hour  

of initial response and burned a total  

of 2700m2. 

Marine Conservation 

The RIA continued to implement the 

Marine Management strategy.  

Key activities from this Strategy for  

2013/14 include:

• Reef Life Survey – a community-

based annual reef fish and marine 

invertebrate survey.

• Marine Debris Survey conducted by 

Earthwatch volunteers.

• Maintenance of all marine-based 

sanctuary zone markers.

• Six illegal take cases referred to 

Department of Fisheries, five of which 

have led to prosecutions.

• Provision of marine-themed education 

programs to school groups.

Research Programs

In 2013/14 the RIA provided permits for 21 

research projects. The following research 

programs were conducted:

• Department of Parks and Wildlife 

(DPaW) and University of Western 

Australia (UWA) quokka demographics 

and genetics survey. 

• Australian Nuclear Science and 

Technology Organisation (ANSTO) 

researching groundwater of  

Wadjemup aquifer. 

• Assessing population dynamics and 

genetics of remnant Rock Parrot 

population on Rottnest Island by Bold 

Park Bird Banding Group.

• Assessing habitat utilisation and 

evolutionary ecology of woodland bird 

species on Rottnest Island (Dr Rob 

Davis in conjunction with cooperative 

banding team).

Environmental Management

The RIA continued the development 

and implementation of one its 

key sustainability initiatives, the 

Environmental Management System 

(EMS). Key deliverables under the EMS 

include the development of environmental 

incident standard operating procedures 

and completion of delivery of various 

internal environmental audits and one  

external audit.

The RIA finalised and launched an  

EMS for the golf course and commenced 

implementation, including regular 

environmental and operational monitoring 

and reporting activities. 

The RIA undertook an hydrogeological 

assessment of its ground water resources. 

Results of the assessment were utilised in 

the development of a Draft Ground Water 

Operating Strategy to support water utility 

operations and will form the basis of legal 

obligations associated with groundwater 

abstraction on the Island.
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Park Services 

The RIA continued to adopt a more educational approach to obtaining visitor compliance 

with its Regulations during the year, resulting in fewer infringements being issued.  

The following table highlights the success of this approach over the year.

July 2013 –  
May 2014

2012 2011

Vessels checked 3686

Marine patrol hours 93hrs 11 mins

Boating guides provided 1757

Marine response hours 75 hrs 5 mins

Total compliance hours 1554 hours

Total warning notices issued 733 694 683

Total infringements issued 106 131 43

The majority of warning notices issued related to:

1. Vessels securing to a mooring without permission and:

2.  Boating visitors failing or refusing to pay admission  

(not being a passenger on commercial transport).

The following works were completed during the year to improve visitor experiences:

• Construction and delineation of settlement parking area.

• Geordie Bay erosion control measures and improved visitor access.

• Review of pest bird management procedures and increased focus on  

problem species C.

• Little Salmon Bay site access improvements including new bin surrounds,  

bike racks and signage.

• Dune maintenance and fencing management at Parker Point area.

• Event exclusion areas created and managed for concerts.
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Wadjemup Walk Trail

Over the past 12 months the Marine and 

Terrestrial Reserve team, in collaboration 

with community, the Rottnest Foundation 

and other not-for-profit groups, have 

implemented the first stages of the 

Wadjemup Walk Trail project Bickley Bay 

and Lakes “West” sections. 

Some of the key outcomes undertaken 

include:

• 6.3ha of revegetation including fencing 

of coastal and woodland species.

• 14,238 plants planted in association 

with rehabilitation and site 

developments.

• 755 volunteer days attended.

• 5,301 volunteer hours completed 

across the program.

• 50 directional (way finding) signs 

installed on the trail sections.

• 15 interpretational signs developed  

for installation.

• 17.6 km total length of walk trails 

constructed (Bickley Bay, Lakes West 

and Salmon Bay sections).

• 3 access structures joint funded and 

constructed by RIA staff (Porpoise Bay 

steps, Lakes Boardwalk, Garden Lake 

stairs) connecting the trail sections 

around the Island

• 46 steps constructed from recycled 

plastic on the Oliver Hill Heritage Trail 

by volunteer group,“the Winnit Club”,  

to link WW2 guns and the trail.

Successful grants awarded to the RIA 

totalled $257,984: Lakes section - 

Lotterywest $100,000; Cathedral Rocks 

seal viewing platforms TQUAL $100,000; 

Fairbridge Bluff beach access stairs and 

lookout - Coastwest $57,984.

RIA matching cash (CAPEX) in 2013/14: 

$126,000 (Lakes West section).

Recreational facilities installed to 

complement the trail experience include:

• 7x seats constructed out of recycled 

plastics (Bickley and Lakes West 

sections).

• 1x picnic setting constructed out of 

recycled plastic on the Lakes West 

section.

• 1x beach shelter (Little Parakeet)

• 1x bus shelter (Little Parakeet stop).

• 1x sculpture installed on the Bickley 

section in conjunction with the AIR 

(artist in residency program).

• 1x podcast outlining Indigenous 

Volunteer program (Bickley section).

The Wadjemup Walk Trail is now live on 

the Trails WA website for members of  

the public to access, download, review  

and comment on.

As part of the overall Wadjemup Walk 

Trail project, the Coastwest supported 

Indigenous Green Corps program, led 

by Conservation Volunteers Australia, 

saw six out of the seven participants that 

completed the full 10 weeks, successful 

in gaining external employment within six 

months of completing the program. 

Considerable planning works have been 

completed on the upcoming sections 

and infrastructure, including coastal and 

structural engineering advice, Ministerial 

approval for reserve infrastructure 

construction (facility standards),  

structure designs, and geotechnical and 

site specific surveys. 

Significant monitoring and environmental 

assessments have been undertaken, 

including all relevant clearing and 

development approvals from external 

parties.
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Highlights 2013-14

• Rottnest Island wins State tourism 

awards for Specialised Tourism 

Services and Sustainability.

• The Rottnest Island Authority launched 

a brand refresh and launched a new 

Rottnest Island destination logo into 

the market. 

• Winner WA State Heritage Awards 

2014 – Outstanding Conservation of a 

non-residential place – Rottnest Island 

WWII Defence Establishment.

• Highly Commended WA State 

Heritage Awards 2014 – Outstanding 

Contribution to Heritage by a  

Public Organisation – Rottnest  

Island Authority.

• Nomination to UNESCO Asia Pacific 

Cultural Heritage Conservation  

Awards 2014 (to be announced in 

September 2014).

• Heritage Architecture award at the 

2014 WA Architecture Awards for 

the restoration of the Rottnest Island 

Oliver Hill Battlery. 

Visitation

During the year more than 540,000 visits 

were made to Rottnest Island.  

This comprised 306,999 visitors by ferry, 

50,708 trips by staff and volunteers, an 

estimated 185,000 visitors by private boat 

and more than 5,700 visitors by aircraft. 

All these visitor types contribute to the 

economy of the Island. 

Of those visitors who came by ferry, most 

(68%) came to experience Rottnest for the 

day, but many (32%) stayed in overnight 

accommodation on the Island. 

It is pleasing to note that our overnight 

visitation is 3% up on last year, due to the 

implementation of reactive strategies.

As a result of proactive measures to 

increase destination marketing the RIA has 

seen an increase in visitation to the Island 

of 4.3% compared to 2012/ 13.

Sales, Marketing and Product Development



41



42 Rottnest Island Authority      |      Annual Report      |      2013-2014

Agency Performance

Marketing

In June 2013 a Request for Quote (RFQ) 

was released into the market seeking 

the services of a professional designer/

creative to refresh Rottnest Island’s look 

and feel by developing an identity system to 

support our future growth, drive consistent 

branding across all visitor touch-points and 

build on existing brand equity. 

This resulted in a total brand portfolio 

refresh, including all logo usage on internal 

and external paraphernalia  

and a refresh of staff uniforms and  

Island signage.

In August 2013 the successful proponent 

(the Living Brand) was appointed for 

a three month period to develop a 

consistent brand identity. The proponent 

used previous market research results and 

spent time on the Island to make sure  

that visitor feedback was utilised in the 

brand refresh. 

The result was a new core brand 

positioning statement of ‘Rottnest is  

the simple pleasures in life’ (see the  

logo on next page within the bus shelter 

advertising).

Rottnest Island has been shortened to 

Rottnest Is (‘is’ being short for Island), 

while the ‘simple pleasures in life’ message 

highlights all that represents the Island, 

with its unique natural beauty, fascinating 

culture and pleasant lifestyle. 

In December 2013 a rollout of the brand 

refresh began with new staff uniforms, 

website re-skin and signage. 

The core brand message has since been 

reflected in all marketing campaigns and 

activities, having launched in our February 

destination marketing campaign (launched 

26 January 2014) and then reinforced in all 

materials for the winter campaign, known 

as the ‘Winter 50s’ Experiences campaign 

(launched 26 April 2014).

These integrated campaigns have utilised 

a number of media touch-points including 

radio, outdoor, print and online media to 

reach our wider target audiences. 

While the focus of both of these campaigns 

was to attract lapsed visitors back to 

the Island, the Winter 50s Experiences 

campaign was specifically focused on 

communicating our wide range of fantastic 

winter activities available on the Island, 

as many visitors were otherwise unaware. 

Winter accommodation deals were offered 

in conjunction with the opportunity to 

trial these winter experiences at a special 

discount price of only $50.  

In April 2014 the RIA commenced  

updating its photographic library in line 

with the new branding. The first series 

of imagery capturing winter and autumn 

experiences has proven to be very popular 

and has been well utilised within recent 

RIA marketing activities. The Experience 

Perth Regional Tourism Organisation 

also selected photography from the new 

portfolio to feature as hero images in its 

2014 Winter Escapes campaign. 

The RIA has continued its focus on 

maintaining regular contact with our 

social media audiences. Our social media 

tools are managed in collaboration with 

an external agency to ensure the greatest 

level of service and interaction with our 

followers. We have also increased the 

use of targeted social media advertising 

campaigns, enabling better targeting of 

key events and new activities to specific 

target markets of the Island. 

The RIA website www.rottnestisland.com  

remains an important tool for marketing 

to and information gathering of potential 

visitors to plan a day trip or extended stay. 

As such, the RIA has introduced a more 

consistent approach to search engine 

marketing (SEM), supporting all major 

marketing activities with SEM campaigns. 

As a result, we have seen significant 

increases in our web traffic, with uplifts  

of more than 45% in traffic during 

campaign periods. 
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Our future focus will be on improving the 

ease of navigation and user friendliness 

of our website and, in particular, making 

it mobile friendly to improve access for 

out-of-home usage when searching and 

booking holidays on the Island.

We have continued our participation 

in consumer/trade tourism shows, 

along with continuing the distribution of 

Rottnest Island brochures to all major 

visitor centres across the State, in an 

effort to become a destination of choice 

for all interstate and international visitors 

to WA.

Rottnest Island hosted a large number 

of media and industry familiarisations, 

resulting in significant exposure for the 

Island on National TV and in international 

tourism campaigns.  

A key highlight was a visit by Tourism 

Australia to film footage during the 

development of their 2014 Restaurant 

Australia Campaign, with Rottnest Island 

featuring as a key destination during the 

campaign. 

Events

In 2013/14 the RIA continued to focus on 

improving visitor experience by offering 

a range of exciting new and improved 

events on the Island. Though many of 

these are over one-day, the focus has been 

on building these core events to increase 

visitor traffic and encourage overnight 

stays with associated accommodation 

packages for every event. Going forward 

it is a core focus of the RIA to grow and 

continuously improve events, and create 

new events that are all cost neutral to  

the Island.

In 2013/14 Rottnest Island has hosted  

45 events, which have attracted more than 

40,000 visitors to the Island. In addition, 

there has been an increasing number of 

private functions, with 30 weddings being 

held on the Island during the year.

Accommodation

Accommodation is the RIA’s most 

important commercial business and 

almost 23,500 arrivals were checked-in at 

the Visitor Centre during the course of the 

year. The operation comprises 291 self-

contained units, a 164 bed dormitory style 

facility at Kingstown, 50 bed hostel and a 

camping ground which was expanded to 

43 sites during 2013/14. 

In line with the strategy to simplify booking 

rules and processes for accommodation, 

the RIA upgraded its property 

management and online booking system 

in November 2013. The new system splits 

Island accommodation into different types 

and provides much improved information 

and images to users prior to booking. The 

new system is also adapted for use by 

smart phone users.

Outside of the periods of highest demand, 

the RIA now offers many ferry inclusive 

package deals which have grown in 

popularity and increased the affordability 

of a holiday on the Island. 

Improvements carried out to the RIA 

accommodation during 2013/14  

include the following:

• Upgrade of 29 front row units at 

Geordie Bay and Longreach to make 

up the “Ocean View” unit type. The 

improvements included repainting, 

new light fittings, retiling of  

bathrooms, new curtains, blinds, 

doonas and furniture.

• Back courtyard walls of the popular 

beach view villas in Geordie Bay were 

lowered and roofing replaced as part of 

an ongoing program.

• Significant upgrade to the Rottnest 

Island Camping Ground increasing the 

number of sites available for hire from 

23 to 43. Landscaping was carried 

out to improve drainage. A new camp 

kitchen with sinks and barbecues was 

added, in addition to modern male and 

female ablution blocks with a facility 

for disabled access.

• Repainting of the 24 back row units  

at Geordie Bay.
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• Bathroom improvements in seven units 

in South Thomson.

• Additional courtyard lighting installed 

over BBQs in South Thomson units.

• Addition of Rottnest Island landscape 

pictures in all accommodation units.

Rottnest Visitor Centre

The Rottnest Visitor Centre is the 

focal point for visitors checking in to 

accommodation, booking tours or seeking 

information. The building was extended 

during September 2013 to provide greater 

space for visitors to wait and browse.

A Rottnest Volunteer Guide is now 

based full-time in the Visitor Centre to 

help visitors plan their day. Six new LED 

information screens have been added 

providing details of everything from the 

weather forecast to ferry timetables.

The Visitor Centre now offers a variety of 

Rottnest branded products for customers 

to buy, while the adjoining café kiosk 

offers an opportunity for a coffee to those 

arriving at or departing from the Island.

Pedal & Flipper

Formerly known as Bike and Hire and 

renamed as part of the brand re-fresh, 

the Pedal & Flipper business unit hired 

out 66,000 bikes during 2013/14. The 

business continued to diversify, hiring out 

over 7,000 mask, snorkel and fin sets, and 

500 recreational hire items.

New products on offer to younger 

Island visitors included scooters and 

skateboards. Older visitors were able 

to take advantage of the 20 electric 

bikes available for the first time on the 

Island this year. 150 new bicycles were 

purchased in 2013/14, along with four  

electric gophers for visitors requiring 

mobility assistance.

Pedal & Flipper continued to support 

numerous events on the Island by  

supplying bikes to event organisers and 

participants to help promote our vehicle 

free Island ethos.

Tours

The RIA’s bus (Island Explorer and Discovery 

Tour) and train service carried 62,000 

passengers around the Island in 2013/14. 

Our complimentary accommodation 

shuttles carried 230,000 passengers 

between our accommodation areas.

From 1 April 2014, the RIA re-launched 

its hop-on/hop-off services as the Island 

Explorer. The new service allows visitors 

to travel around the whole Island and 

now includes stops at the West End and 

Cathedral Rocks. 
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Cultural Heritage, Building Conservation and Interpretation 

Cultural heritage management includes 

care of over 140 heritage places and more 

than 2,000 historic artefacts as well as an 

oral and archival history collection. 

After an extensive program of building 

conservation works in 2012/13, this year’s 

focus has been on interpretation and 

public programs to support community 

events and the visitor experience. 

These included:

• A Parade celebrating the 75th 

Anniversary of Military Heritage on 

Rottnest Island attended by members 

of the Australian Defence Force, nine 

WWII veterans (all of whom served on 

Rottnest during WWII) and members 

of the public, with an address from the 

Premier’s representative Veteran's 

Minister the Hon Joe M Francis MLA. 

Two exhibitions were also developed as 

part of the anniversary celebrations.

• Provision of researched and authentic 

heritage content for key events 

including ANZAC Day and a two-day 

Heritage Festival also in April.

• A photographic exhibition “Capturing 

the Enemy” (using historic 

photographs obtained from the 

National Library of Australia, taken on 

Rottnest Island during 1914 and 1915), 

to commemorate the centenary of WWI 

and to explain the role Rottnest Island 

undertook as an Internment Camp. 

• As part of the centenary 

commemoration of WW1, Scooplight 

Theatre and the RIA developed a 

theatrical presentation “Rottnest After 

Dark – Capturing the Enemy”, which 

parallels the exhibition. The theatrical 

experience is offered as part of the 

Rottnest Island “winter package”. 

• Hosting part of the exhibition 

“Wadjemup to Walyalup: a History of 

Indigenous Incarceration in Western 

Australia (Rottnest to Fremantle)" 

kindly on loan from the Fremantle 

Prison, supplemented with other 

relevant material including two short 

films and powerful contemporary art, 

courtesy of BlackRussian Productions 

and artist Tanya Ferrier. 

• Development of podcasts providing 

content about heritage cottages 

accessible to guests, through a QR 

code on key tags.

In preparation for the RIA’s strategic 

objective of conservation and improved 

access to cultural heritage identified 

in the draft RIMP 2014-19, a Heritage 

Conservation Plan is being prepared. It 

will identify the local, State, national and 

potential world heritage values associated 

with the Island and provide a framework 

for managing those values for conservation 

and improved visitor access. The plan will 

be completed in September 2014.

The RIA continues its planned 

maintenance program for heritage sites 

and assessment of development on the 

Island for its impact on heritage values, 

including this year the careful monitoring 

of works to the golf course in accordance 

with the S.18 requirements of the 

Aboriginal Heritage Act (1972). 
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Interpretation

Many projects aimed at better 

communicating to the Rottnest Island 

visitor have been undertaken, with the key 

objective of engaging and informing so 

the visitor gains a greater appreciation of 

where they are, and how beautiful, unique 

and fragile the Island is.

Some key initiatives undertaken are; 

• Development of the “Love your local 

wildlife campaign” aimed at educating 

guests about how to interact with 

wildlife and help us manage pest  

bird issues. 

• Interpretation on Wadjemup  

Walk Trail.

The Rottnest Walk Trail Interpretation 

Plans design must communicate the 

diverse values, features and stories of 

the Island to ensure visitors continue to 

respect and protect the Island. The first 

two sections completed are;

Bickley Bay 

Along this trail hikers discover and 

explore many military sites, remnants 

of the Coastal Defence system installed 

to protect Fremantle Port and Great 

Perth during WWII. A highlight is the 

Beachcomber Sculpture. With waste 

management a requested theme, ‘Artist 

in Residence’ attendee Fleur Marron 

introduces visitors to some issues faced 

by the RIA, with the sculpture made from 

80% recycled materials sourced from the 

Island.

The Salt Lakes

The 11km trail tells stories that reflect 

both the past varied usage of the Island, 

with the underlying theme of fragile 

ecosystems and fascinating geology 

surrounding the Salt Lakes. 

Marine Facilities

Following the public comment and 

stakeholder consultation the Boating 

Management Strategy was finalised and 

adopted by the Board for development over 

the next three years. 

The following key outcomes were achieved 

in 2013/14:

• A permanent isolated danger navigation 

marker has been installed in north 

Thomson Bay mitigating the risk to 

vessels transiting through the area.

• Work with private mooring licensees 

to maximise their mooring capacity to 

meet demand for larger vessels.

• Continue with the additional 10 metre 

vessel trial for moorings with a capacity 

of 20 metres or greater.

• Maintain the integrity and increase the 

capacity of RIA hire moorings.

• Work on the development of an online 

mooring licensing and hire mooring 

booking system.

• Trial of on-water garbage collection 

service for outer bays over peak periods.

• Liaison with event organisers to 

mitigate the risk and disruption to 

marine users.

Cultural Heritage Collection Care

During 2013/14 the RIA accessioned 

more than 400 artefacts and images 

into the Rottnest Museum collection 

database. The RIA also manages the 

Rottnest Island art collection with ongoing 

condition assessments and improvements 

to accessibility and archival storage. 

Significant projects and donations included:

• Digitisation of RIA Board Minutes,  

1917-1994. 

• The Winnit Collection of Minute 

books, dating from 1931 are currently 

stored with the RIA collection with the 

prospect of digitising this history.

• 1890s Bible from the Anglican Chapel.

• Photograph album containing original 

19th century images.

• AWAS Army Jacket donated by a 

veteran who served on Rottnest Island 

during WWII.
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Reconciliation 

The RIA is committed to promoting 

awareness, education and action with all 

stakeholders to develop respect and create 

opportunities for Aboriginal people. 

During 2013/14 the RIA has successfully 

delivered on a number of its Reconciliation 

Action Plan initiatives which included: 

• Support of Indigenous Green Corps 

cadets to assist in tree planting as 

part of the walk trail. Experience in 

the project has resulted in 10 cadets 

gaining employment in Land Care 

Management.

• Successful completion of a Certificate 

III in Land Care Management by a 

trainee who gained employment within 

the RIA using the skills and experience 

acquired during his traineeship. 

• An on-Island screening of BlackRussian 

Productions “Rottnest Island – 

Black Prison – White Playground” 

– a docudrama presenting the 

story of Aboriginal suppression and 

incarceration during colonial times 

and its legacy on communities today. 

Staff and others attended as part of 

the continuation of cross-cultural 

awareness training for the RIA, Island 

businesses, volunteers and contractors.

• Presentation of Aboriginal educational 

activities through the school 

educational program, professional 

development courses and also through 

events such as Heritage Festival,  

which included weaving and bush 

tucker demonstrations and the 

hosting of the Wadjemup to Walyalup 

Exhibition kindly on loan from the 

Fremantle Prison. 

• RIA hosted a weaving workshop for 

Aboriginal women from the local 

community. This took place during 

the Wadjemup Cup, an annual football 

event attracting Aboriginal youth from 

the Clontarf Foundation. Over 100 boys 

participated in the football carnival, 

travelling from all over the State to 

take part.

• Attendance of five staff at a “Your 

Way My Way” Workshop on effective 

communication and consultation with 

Aboriginal stakeholders.

• A “Catch, Cook and Yarn” surfing 

weekend attended by 30 people and 

supported by ICEA, RecfishWest and 

Surfing WA.

• Attendance of two staff at “Speaking 

Culturally”, presented by Kim Bridge 

and hosted by Programmed Facilities 

Management on 5 May. 

The RIA continues to consult with the 

local community through the South West 

Aboriginal Land and Sea Council and 

Whadjuk Working Group. 
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Volunteers 

Rottnest Voluntary Guides Association 

(RVGA) 

With over 250 active members, the 

RVGA continues to provide an essential 

conduit for the RIA in delivering insight 

into history, environment and culture on 

Rottnest Island. 

Successfully delivering an extensive range 

of daily tours as well as Special Request 

Group tours, and an engaging School 

Holiday program, the RVGA is synonymous 

with a holiday to the Island. Some details 

from the past year are;

• Up to 9 tours daily.

• 42 activities per week during  

School Holidays.

• Almost 60,000 people hosted on 

around 7,300 tours.

• 5,409 visitors on School Holiday 

program tours.

• Installation of the ‘Meet and Greet’ 

desk at the Visitor Centre, providing 

a crucial resource for new visitors to 

the Island and streamlining for general 

inquiries. 

• After significant works, the Bickley 

Battery Walk was reinstated and 

training undertaken. 

In 2013/14 27 new guides were inducted. 

A‘Maintaining Excellence’ Committee was 

created to ensure an ongoing commitment 

to quality and the focus on visitor 

experience.

Rottnest Foundation

The Rottnest Foundation is an 

independent not- for- profit volunteer 

organisation that was established to 

support the conservation and preservation 

of Rottnest Island’s natural and cultural 

assets, and to ensure that the Rottnest 

experience is conserved for future 

generations. The Rottnest Foundation 

provides volunteer labour towards 

conservation projects on the Island, 

participating in tree planting activities 

every year.

The Foundation also pursues additional 

funding from external sources to assist the 

RIAs in meeting its obligations to manage 

the Island’s environmental and historical 

values to ensure future generations of 

visitors can enjoy this beautiful Island. 

Two major projects that the Rottnest 

Foundation is currently seeking funding 

for are the Wadjemup Walk Trail and the 

repair and recognition of the Wadjemup 

Aboriginal Burial Ground.

The RIA seconded a full time staff member 

to assist the Rottnest Foundation with its 

funding efforts for these two significant 

projects.

A key annual event run by the Rottnest 

Foundation is the Rottnest Island ‘Festival 

of Sail’ which aims to connect the yachting 

community with Rottnest Island and raise 

the profile of the ‘Rottnest Foundation’ 

and its work in ‘Conserving the Essence of 

Rottnest’. Funding raised from the event 

goes towards current projects.

This unique yachting regatta provides 

competitors and visitors to Rottnest with a 

weekend of spectacular sailing. The event 

now has capacity for 100 yachts, all with 

mooring space provided.

Education 

Over 5,000 students and 400 teachers 

from about 120 schools participated 

in curriculum-linked activities with an 

estimated $500,000 contributed to the 

Rottnest Island economy. 

An estimated 4,000 children and adults 

have also participated in school holiday 

activity programs run by the RIA in 

collaboration with the RVGA, Recfishwest, 

Department of Fisheries and Tangaroa 

Blue Ocean Care Society. 

Key developments in the school education 

program included: 

• Further development of a suite of  

self-guided activity kits. 

• Further aligning curriculum-linked 

activities. 

• Focused alignment with RIA strategic 

initiatives such as Cultural and 

Environmental Awareness with a focus 

on Rottnest centric outcomes.

• Partnering with Nature Play WA to 

conduct a large scale Geocaching 

event open to all WA schools.

• Development of a Family Geocaching 

weekend event, aimed at showcasing 

the Island’s Cultural, Historic and 

Sustainable highlights, and instilling 

family and outdoor, active lifestyle 

values. 
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“ 27 new guides were 
inducted in 2013/14 – 
taking total active members 
of the Rottnest Voluntary 
Guides Association (RVGA) 
to over 250. ”
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Agency Performance

During the 2013/14 financial year the RIA achieved an accounting profit of $0.6 million 

and a positive net cashflow of $0.5 million.  A modest increase in operating revenues and 

diligent cost control has contributed to this result, however, commercial profit margins  

are declining.

As part of the $8.4m in works programs the RIA has invested $6.5 million on capital 

upgrades to improve visitor experiences and on utility infrastructure to mitigate 

compliance matters.

Profits from commercial activities are required to cross-subsidise the non-commercial 

and essential services provided by the RIA, and this diversion of commercial profits means 

that adequate re-investment into the commercial businesses and assets is not occurring.  

The RIA remains dependent on the State Government’s annual appropriation to meet the 

balance of the costs of these non–commercial services.

The net cash flow for the 2013/14 year was a net cash inflow of $0.6m.  The positive 

cashflows from operations have provided funds for the $6.5m of capital works projects.

Target 2013-14 Result 2013-14

Total cost of services - $35.1 million $38.4 million

Profit/(Loss) - $0.1M $0.6 million

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held ($4.3M) $0.5 million

The following table of financial ratios highlights the Authority’s financial performance over 

recent years:

Financial Ratio 2014 2013 2012 2011

Operating revenue per visitor $99.33 $101.84 $98.72 $93.40

Profit margin percentage 
(Profit before depreciation and 
extraordinary items as a % of revenue)

12.3% 14.2% 10.8% 15.8%

Cash ratio 
(Coverage of current liabilities with cash)

1.06 1.22 1.35 1.35

Financial Summary



55

“ The RIA is committed to 
increasing the environmental, 
social and economic 
sustainability of the Island 
through a program of continued 
improvement, education and 
capital investment”
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Significant Issues & Trends

Visitation 

The number of tourist visits to Rottnest 

Island has fluctuated within a band of 

450,000 to 550,000 over the past 10 

years. This is caused by a range of factors 

including variations in the local economy, 

weather patterns, currency exchange 

rates and overseas events. Fluctuations 

in the tourism industry during any year 

make predicting income and expenses 

challenging. Growth is critical to the 

financial viability and sustainability of the 

Island. Without this increased visitation 

the Island will not be economically 

sustainable and will suffer from a variety 

of negative consequences including 

deteriorating assets, reduced service 

levels and a depleted visitor experience. 

The RIA will invest in implementing new 

tourism products and services which will 

enhance the visitor experience. Most of 

these will be provided by engaging private 

providers, but some may be provided by 

the RIA based on practical requirements 

such as avoiding private monopoly of key 

infrastructure. 

Finally, the RIA will implement aggressive 

destination marketing and promotional 

strategies to increase visitation and 

sales revenue for all providers on the 

Island. These strategies will be based on 

the planned new and improved tourism 

related accommodation and products as 

discussed above. 

Economic Viability 

The economic viability of the Island and 

the financial sustainability of the RIA as an 

agency are paramount to the long-term 

success of Rottnest Island as a tourism and 

recreational destination.

The RIA proposes to change its business 

model as outlined in the Draft Rottnest 

Island Management Plan (RIMP) 

2014-19. As a general principle, the RIA 

will not provide commercial products 

on the Island. Private and alternative 

providers will be engaged to provide such 

services. Guidelines have been developed 

by the RIA to help guide decision making 

in this area. Most operators on the Island 

are already private commercial business 

owners and have been for many years. 

The RIA’s main role will be the Island’s 

‘manager’, rather than an operator or 

supplier. It will continue to fulfill its 

legislative functions, but in a different 

manner. 

The RIA Board and the Minister for Tourism 

are yet to approve this Draft RIMP.

The RIA will need to identify new forms of 

revenue, based on the economic health of 

the Island, to replace those commercial 

revenues foregone in the new model. 

There is a need for the RIA to restructure 

its operations to focus on:

1. destination marketing and product 

development; and 

2. improving the Island’s infrastructure, 

accommodation, utilities and 

recreational facilities. 

The Island’s infrastructure, such as 

utilities, roads, jetties and amenities, must 

be maintained to a safety and compliance 

standard as this is the expectation of the 

local and inbound tourists. 

The responsibility of the RIA to provide 

utility services adds to the complexity of 

ensuring the Island’s economic viability. 

The RIA will seek to move towards a 

renewable energy model in stages. 
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“ The RIA’s ICT strategy is 
designed specifically to support 
the business in enhancing the 
visitor experience”
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Certification of Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

The accompanying financial statements of the Rottnest Island Authority have been prepared in compliance with the provisions of the 

Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial transactions for the financial year ended 

30 June 2014 and the financial position as at 30 June 2014.

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars included in the financial statements 

misleading or inaccurate.

John Driscoll 
Chairman

15 September 2014

Robert McDonald  
Member

15 September 2014

Othmar Beerli 
Chief Finance Officer

15 September 2014
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“ 2013 marked the 75th 
Anniversary of Military Heritage 
on Rottnest Island”
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7th Floor Albert Facey House 469 Wellington Street Perth  MAIL TO: Perth BC PO Box 8489 Perth WA 6849  TEL: 08 6557 7500  FAX: 08 6557 7600 

   
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Parliament of Western Australia 
 
ROTTNEST ISLAND AUTHORITY 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
I have audited the accounts and financial statements of the Rottnest Island Authority. 
 
The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2014, the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash 
Flows for the year then ended, and Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 
 
Board’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
The Board is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the 
Treasurer’s Instructions, and for such internal control as the Board determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
financial statements based on my audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with Australian 
Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements 
relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Authority’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Rottnest Island Authority at 30 June 2014 and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended. They are in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer’s Instructions. 
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Report on Controls 
I have audited the controls exercised by the Rottnest Island Authority during the year ended  
30 June 2014. 
 
Controls exercised by the Rottnest Island Authority are those policies and procedures 
established by the Board to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the 
acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with 
legislative provisions. 
 
Board’s Responsibility for Controls 
The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal control to ensure that 
the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of public and 
other property, and the incurring of liabilities are in accordance with the Financial Management 
Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and other relevant written law. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
controls exercised by the Rottnest Island Authority based on my audit conducted in accordance 
with Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of controls 
to ensure that the Authority complies with the legislative provisions. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement and include an evaluation of the design and implementation 
of relevant controls. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Rottnest Island Authority are sufficiently adequate 
to provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the 
acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with 
legislative provisions during the year ended 30 June 2014. 
 
Report on the Key Performance Indicators 
I have audited the key performance indicators of the Rottnest Island Authority for the year ended 
30 June 2014.  
 
The key performance indicators are the key effectiveness indicators and the key efficiency 
indicators that provide information on outcome achievement and service provision. 
 
Board’s Responsibility for the Key Performance Indicators 
The Board is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the key performance 
indicators in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s 
Instructions and for such controls as the Board determines necessary to ensure that the key 
performance indicators fairly represent indicated performance. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
key performance indicators based on my audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing 
and Assurance Standards.  
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Independent Audit Opinion
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the key performance 
indicators. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the key performance indicators. In making 
these risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Board’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the key performance indicators in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the relevance and 
appropriateness of the key performance indicators for measuring the extent of outcome 
achievement and service provision. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the key performance indicators of the Rottnest Island Authority are relevant and 
appropriate to assist users to assess the Authority’s performance and fairly represent indicated 
performance for the year ended 30 June 2014. 
 
Independence 
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor 
General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards, and other relevant ethical 
requirements.  
 
Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Statements and 
Key Performance Indicators 
This auditor’s report relates to the financial statements and key performance indicators of the 
Rottnest Island Authority for the year ended 30 June 2014 included on the Authority’s website. 
The Authority’s management is responsible for the integrity of the Authority’s website. This audit 
does not provide assurance on the integrity of the Authority’s website. The auditor’s report refers 
only to the financial statements and key performance indicators described above. It does not 
provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from these 
financial statements or key performance indicators. If users of the financial statements and key 
performance indicators are concerned with the inherent risks arising from publication on a 
website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial statements and key 
performance indicators to confirm the information contained in this website version of the 
financial statements and key performance indicators. 
 

 
GLEN CLARKE 
DEPUTY AUDITOR GENERAL 
Delegate of the Auditor General for Western Australia 
Perth, Western Australia 
17 September 2014 
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 2014 2013

$000 $000

INCOME

Revenue

Sales 6 142 297

Provision of services 7 30,350 29,416

Commonwealth grants and contributions 8 76 2

Interest revenue 9 865 1,050

Other revenue 488 304

TOTAL INCOME 31,921 31,069

Expenses

Cost of sales 6 82 89

Employee benefits expense 11 11,281 10,967

Supplies and services 12 21,203 18,113

Depreciation and amortisation expense 13 4,164 4,264

Finance costs 14 279 263

Accommodation expenses 15 407 397

Loss on disposal of non-current assets 10 7 106

Other expenses 16 1,055 885

TOTAL EXPENSES 38,478 35,084

(Loss) before grants and subsidies from State 
Government (6,557) (4,015)

Grants and subsidies from State Government 17 6,767 4,745

Services received free of charge 18 414 85

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 624 815

Note 2014 2013

$000 $000

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Changes in asset revaluation surplus 31 - 8,184

Total other comprehensive income - 8,184
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR  
THE PERIOD 624 8,999

See also note 41 ‘Schedule of Income and Expenses 
by Service’

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be 
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2014

Note 2014 2013

$000 $000

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 32 1,977 1,460

Inventories 19 101 120

Receivables 20 1,547 2,122

Other financial assets 21 4,500 14,000

Total Current Assets 8,125 17,702

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 22 214,737 216,625

Infrastructure 23 28,042 24,044

Intangible assets 25 1,476 900

Other financial assets 21 13,500 4,000

Total Non-Current Assets 257,755 245,569

TOTAL ASSETS 265,880 263,271

Note 2014 2013

$000 $000

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Payables 27 4,327 4,347

Borrowings 28 115 146

Provisions 29 2,381 2,275

Other current liabilities 30 11,239 9,135

Total Current Liabilities 18,062 15,903

Non-Current Liabilities

Borrowings 28 22 138

Provisions 29 843 801

Other non-current liabilities 30 733 833

Total Non-Current liabilities 1,598 1,772

TOTAL LIABILITIES 19,660 17,675

NET ASSETS 246,220 245,596

EQUITY

Contributed equity 31 50,032 50,032

Reserves 31 189,798 189,798

Retained earnings 31 6,390 5,766

TOTAL EQUITY 246,220 245,596

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the  
accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note
Contributed 

equity
Reserves

Retained 
earnings

Total Equity

$000 $000 $000 $000

Balance at 1 July 2012 31 50,032 181,614 4,951 236,597

Profit - -  815 815

Other comprehensive income - 8,184 - 8,184

Total comprehensive income for the period - 8,184 815 8,999

Transactions with Owners in their capacity as Owners:

Capital Appropriations - - - -

Other contributions by Owners - - - -

Distribution to Owners - - - -

Total - - - -

Balance at 30 June 2013 50,032 189,798 5,766 245,596 

 

Balance at 1 July 2013 50,032 189,798 5,766 245,596 

Profit - - 624 624

Other comprehensive income - - - -

Total comprehensive income for the period 0 0 624 624

Transactions with Owners in their capacity as Owners:

Capital Appropriations - - - -

Other contributions by Owners - - - -

Distribution to Owners

Total - - - -

Balance at 30 June 2014 50,032 189,798 6,390 246,220 

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 2014 2013

$000 $000

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Receipts

Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets - -

Proceeds from sale of investments - -

Payments

Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets - -

Purchase of non-current physical assets (6,312) (6,386)

Net cash (used in) investing activities (6,312) (6,386)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts

Proceeds from Borrowings - -

Payments

Repayment of Borrowings (116) (153)

Net cash (used in) financing activities (116) (153)

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT

Grants and subsidies from State Government 6,763 4,821

Net cash provided by State Government 6,763 4,821

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 517 (2,321)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of  
the period 19,460 21,781
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF 
THE PERIOD 32 19,977 19,460

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Note 2014 2013

$000 $000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts

Sale of goods and services 142 297

Provision of services 32,503 29,924

Commonwealth grants and contributions 76 2

Interest received 609 1,064

GST receipts on sales 3,345 2,841

GST receipts from taxation authority 507 499

Payments

Employee benefits (11,062) (10,635)

Supplies and services (20,634) (20,385)

Finance costs (279) (263)

GST payments on purchases (3,177) (2,411)

GST payments to taxation authority (885) (302)

Other payments (963) (1,234)

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 32 182 (603)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) General statement

  The Authority is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose 

financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, 

the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative 

pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer's Instructions.  Several of 

these are modified by the Treasurer's Instructions to vary application, disclosure, 

format and wording.  

  The Financial Management Act and the Treasurer's Instructions impose legislative 

provisions that govern the preparation of financial statements and take precedence 

over Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting 

Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB.  

  Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect 

upon the reported results, details of that modification and the resulting financial 

effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation

  The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting 

using the historical cost convention, except for land, buildings, infrastructure and 

artworks which have been measured at fair value. 

  The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have 

been consistently applied throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated.

  The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are 

rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($’000).

Note 1. Australian Accounting Standards

General

The Rottnest Island Authority’s (“the Authority”) financial statements for the year ended 

30 June 2014 have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. 

The term ‘Australian Accounting Standards’ includes Standards and Interpretations 

issued by the Australian Accounting Standard Board (AASB).

The Authority has adopted any applicable, new and revised Australian Accounting 

Standards from their operative dates. 

Early adoption of standards

The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically 

permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other 

Pronouncements.  There has been no early adoption of Australian Accounting Standards 

that have been issued or amended (but not operative) by the Authority for the annual 

reporting period ended 30 June 2014.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

(e) Income

 Revenue recognition

  Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration received or 

receivable. Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows:

 Sale of goods

  Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when 

the significant risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the purchaser and can be 

measured reliably.

 Provision of Services

  Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction. 

For example, Visitor Accommodation revenue is recognised over the course of the 

Visitors’ stay on the Island. Admissions income is recognised when the invoice is 

issued to the ferry companies. Other revenue, including Housing and Business rental 

income, is recognised as the service is provided.  

 Interest

 Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.

 Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions

  Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Authority obtains control over the 

assets comprising the contributions, usually when cash is received.

  Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are 

recognised at their fair value. Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair 

value can be reliably determined and the services would be purchased if not donated.

  Gains 

  Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis. These include 

gains arising on the disposal of non-current assets and some revaluations of  

non-current assets.

  Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’ discloses 

judgements that have been made in the process of applying the Authority’s 

accounting policies resulting in the most significant effect on amounts recognised in 

the financial statements.

  Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions made 

concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of 

the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to 

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

(c) Reporting entity

 The reporting entity comprises the Rottnest Island Authority.

(d) Contributed equity

  AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public 

Sector Entities requires transfers in the nature of equity contributions, other than 

as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, to be designated by 

the Government (the owner) as contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior 

to transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions. 

Capital appropriations have been designated as contributions by owners by TI 955 

Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities and have been 

credited directly to Contributed equity.

  The transfers of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a 

restructure of administrative arrangements, are designated as contributions by 

owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

(f) Property, plant and equipment and infrastructure

 Capitalisation/Expensing of assets

  Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure costing $5,000 or more 

are recognised as assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) 

over their useful lives.  Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure 

costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income (other than where they form part of a group of similar items 

which are significant in total).

 Initial recognition and measurement

 Property, plant and equipment and infrastructure are initially recognised at cost.  

  For items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure acquired at no cost or 

for nominal cost, the cost is the fair value at the date of acquisition.

 Subsequent measurement

  Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used for the 

measurement of land, buildings and infrastructure and historical cost for all other 

property, plant and equipment.  Land, buildings and infrastructure are carried at 

fair value less accumulated depreciation (buildings and infrastructure only) and 

accumulated impairment losses.  All other items of property, plant and equipment 

are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses.

  Fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of existing use. This 

normally applies where buildings are specialised or where land use is restricted. 

Fair value for existing use assets is determined by reference to the cost of replacing 

the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, ie. the depreciated 

replacement cost. Where the fair value of buildings is determined on the depreciated 

replacement cost basis, the gross carrying amount and the accumulated 

depreciation are restated proportionally.

  Land and buildings are independently valued annually by the Western Australian 

Land Information Authority (Valuation Services) and recognised annually to ensure 

that the carrying amount does not differ materially from the asset’s fair value at 

the end of the reporting period. Where market-based evidence is available, the fair 

value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of current market buying 

values determined by reference to recent market transactions. When buildings are 

revalued by reference to recent market transactions, the accumulated depreciation 

is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount 

restated to the revalued amount.

  Fair value of infrastructure has been determined by reference to the depreciated 

replacement cost (existing use basis) as the assets are specialised and no market-

based evidence of value is available. Land under infrastructure is included in land 

reported under note 22 ‘Property, plant and equipment. Independent valuations are 

obtained every 3 to 5 years for infrastructure.

  When infrastructure is revalued, the accumulated depreciation is restated 

proportionately with the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that the 

carrying amount of the asset after revaluation equals its revalued amount.

  The most significant assumptions in estimating fair value are made in assessing 

whether to apply the existing use basis to assets and in determining estimated useful 

life. Professional judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not 

provide a clear distinction between market type assets and existing use assets. Refer 

to note 22 ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and note 23 ‘Infrastructure’ for further 

information on revaluations.

 De-recognition

  Upon disposal or de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment and 

infrastructure, any revaluation surplus relating to that asset is retained in the asset 

revaluation surplus.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

  Asset revaluation surplus

  The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on  

the revaluation of non-current assets as described in note 22 ‘Property, plant  

and equipment’.

  Depreciation

  All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated 

over their estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their 

future economic benefits.  

  Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which are 

reviewed annually. Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are:

 Buildings 20 to 40 years

 Computers & Electronic Equipment 3 to 10 years

 Furniture 3 to 5 years

 Plant & Vehicles 3 to 7 years

 Leasehold Improvements 10 to 15 years

 Infrastructure 5 to 50 years

  Works of art and Cultural Heritage Assets controlled by the Authority are classified 

as property, plant and equipment. These are anticipated to have indefinite useful 

lives. Their service potential has not, in any material sense, been consumed during 

the reporting period and consequently no depreciation has been recognised.

  Land is not depreciated.

(g) Intangible assets

 Capitalisation/Expensing of assets

  Acquisitions for intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and internally  

generated intangible assets costing $50,000 or more are capitalised. The cost of 

utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) over their useful life. Costs incurred 

below these thresholds are immediately expensed directly to the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income.

  Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for 

nominal cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition. 

  The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be 

carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 

losses.

  Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period 

of the expected benefit (estimated useful life which is reviewed annually) on the 

straight line basis.  All intangible assets controlled by the Authority have a finite 

useful life and zero residual value.

  The expected useful lives for each class of intangible asset are:

 Software (a) 3 to 10 years

 Website Costs 3 to 5 years

 (a) Software that is not integral to the operation of any related hardware
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   The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s 

depreciation is materially understated, where the replacement cost is falling or 

where there is a significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of assets is 

reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects 

the level of consumption or expiration of the asset’s future economic benefits and to 

evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs.

   Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available 

for use are tested for impairment at the end of each reporting period irrespective of 

whether there is any indication of impairment.

   The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair 

value less costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows expected to be 

derived from the asset.  Surplus assets carried at fair value have no risk of material 

impairment where fair value is determined by reference to market-based evidence.  

Where fair value is determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost, 

surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the recoverable amount is measured.  

Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of impairment at the end of each 

reporting period.

 Computer software

  Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as property, 

plant and equipment. Software that is not an integral part of the related hardware is 

treated as an intangible asset. Software costing less than $5,000 is expensed in the 

year of acquisition.

 Website costs

  Website costs are charged as expenses when they are incurred unless they relate 

to the acquisition or development of an asset when they may be capitalised and 

amortised. Generally, costs in relation to feasibility studies during the planning 

phase of a website, and ongoing costs of maintenance during the operating phase 

are expensed. Costs incurred in building or enhancing a website, to the extent that 

they represent probable future economic benefits that can be reliably measured,  

are capitalised.

(h) Impairment of assets

  Property, plant and equipment, infrastructure and intangible assets are tested 

for any indication of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Where there 

is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. Where the 

recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered 

impaired and is written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss 

is recognised. Where an asset measured at cost is written down to recoverable 

amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.  Where a previously 

revalued asset is written down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a 

revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income. As the Authority is a not-for-

profit entity, unless an asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable 

amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated 

replacement cost.
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  Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value 

which normally equates to the transaction cost or the face value. Subsequent 

measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

  The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the 

face value because there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement 

is not required as the effect of discounting is not material.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents

  For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent assets 

comprise cash on hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of three 

months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are 

subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

  The Authority also has long-term deposits classified as Other Assets with original 

maturities of 12 months and over which are subject to insignificant risk of changes  

in value.

(l) Accrued salaries

  Accrued salaries (see note 27 ‘Payables’) represent the amount due to staff but 

unpaid at the end of the financial year. Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight 

of the financial year end. The Authority considers the carrying amount of accrued 

salaries to be equivalent to its net fair value.

(m) Inventories

  Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are 

assigned by the weighted average cost method.

  Inventories not held for resale are measured at cost unless they are no longer 

required, in which case they are measured at net realisable value.

(i) Leases

  Finance lease rights and obligations are initially recognised, at the commencement 

of the lease term, as assets and liabilities equal in amount to the fair value of 

the leased item or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, 

determined at the inception of the lease. The assets are disclosed as plant, 

equipment and vehicles under lease, and are depreciated over the period during 

which the Authority is expected to benefit from their use. Minimum lease payments 

are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding 

lease liability, according to the interest rate implicit in the lease.

  Operating leases are expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term as this 

represents the pattern of benefits derived from the leased assets.

(j) Financial instruments

  In addition to cash and bank overdraft, the Authority has three categories of financial 

instrument

• Receivables; 

• Term deposits; and

• Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost.

 Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the following classes:

• Financial Assets

• Cash and cash equivalents

• Receivables

• Term deposits

• Financial Liabilities

• Payables; 

• Finance Lease Liabilities.
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(q)    Provisions

  Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised where 

there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and 

when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable and 

a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are 

reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

 Provisions – employee benefits

  All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of employees’ 

services up to the end of the reporting period.

  Annual leave 

  Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of 

the reporting period and is therefore considered to be ‘other long-term employee 

benefits’. The annual leave liability is recognised and measured at the present 

value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the 

remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

  When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected 

future wage and salary levels including non-salary components such as employer 

superannuation contributions as well as the experience of employee departures 

and periods of service. The expected future payments are discounted using market 

yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to 

maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

  The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the Authority does 

not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 

months after the end of the reporting period.

(n) Receivables

  Receivables are recognised at original invoice amount less an allowance for any 

uncollectible amounts (i.e. impairment). The collectability of receivables is reviewed 

on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as uncollectible are written-off 

against the allowance account. The allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful 

debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that the Authority will not be able 

to collect the debts. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for 

settlement within 30 days. 

(o) Payables

  Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Authority becomes 

obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services. The 

carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as settlement is generally within 30 days. 

(p) Borrowings

  All loans payable are initially recognised at fair value, being the net proceeds 

received. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest 

rate method. 
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  Long service leave

  The liability for long service leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 

months after the end of the reporting period is recognised and measured at the 

present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using 

the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

  When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected 

future wage and salary levels including non salary components such as employer 

superannuation contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures 

and periods of service.  The expected future payments are discounted using market 

yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to 

maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

  Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the 

Authority does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability 

for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.  Pre-conditional and 

conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities 

because the Authority has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the 

liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.

 Sick leave

  Liabilities for sick leave are recognised when it is probable that sick leave paid in the 

future will be greater than the entitlement that will accrue in the future.

  Past history indicates that on average, sick leave taken each reporting period is 

less than the entitlement accrued. This is expected to continue in future periods. 

Accordingly, it is unlikely that existing accumulated entitlements will be used by 

employees and no liability for unused sick leave entitlements is recognised. As sick 

leave is non-vesting, an expense is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive 

Income for this leave as it is taken.

 Purchased leave

  The provision for purchased leave relates to Public Service employees who have 

entered into an agreement to self-fund up to additional four weeks leave per 

calendar year. The provision recognises the value of salary set aside for employees 

and is measured at the nominal amounts expected to be paid when liabilities are 

settled. The liability is measured on the same basis as annual leave.

  Time in lieu

  The flexible working hours provisions of the Authority’s enterprise bargaining 

agreement introduced the concept of annualised hours. At the end of the settlement 

period, when actual hours worked exceed the average aggregate ordinary hours, the 

employee will be paid for the excess hours, or the employee will take time in lieu at a 

mutually agreed time.

  Superannuation

  The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other fund providers 

administer public sector superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in 

accordance with legislative requirements.  Eligibility criteria for membership in 

particular schemes for public sector employees vary according to commencement 

and implementation dates.

  Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension 

scheme closed to new members since 1987, or the Gold State Superannuation 

Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme closed to new members  

since 1995.
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  The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole of 

government reporting.  However, from an agency perspective, apart from the pre-

transfer benefits, it is a defined contribution plan under AASB 119. 

 Provisions – other

 Employment On-Costs

  Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not 

employee benefits and are recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when 

the employment to which they relate has occurred. Employment on-costs are 

included as part of ‘Other expenses’ and are not included as part of the Authority’s 

‘Employee benefits expense’. The related liability is included in ‘Employment on-

costs provision’.  

(r) Superannuation expense

  Superannuation expense is recognised in the profit or loss of the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income and comprises employer contributions paid to the GSS 

(concurrent contributions), WSS, the GESBS, and other superannuation funds.

  Superannuation (continued)

  Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of 

either the Pension Scheme or the GSS became non-contributory members of the West 

State Superannuation Scheme (WSS).  Employees commencing employment on or 

after 16 April 2007 became members of the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS).  From 30 

March 2012, existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees have been 

able to choose their preferred superannuation fund provider.  The Authority makes 

contributions to GESB or other fund providers on behalf of employees in compliance 

with the Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) 

Act 1992.  Contributions to these accumulation schemes extinguish the Authority’s 

liability for superannuation charges in respect of employees who are not members of 

the Pension Scheme or GSS.

  The Pension Scheme and the pre-transfer benefit for employees who transferred to 

the GSS are defined benefit schemes. These benefits are wholly unfunded and the 

liabilities for future payments are provided at the end of the reporting period. The 

liabilities under these schemes have been calculated separately for each scheme 

annually by Mercer Actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

  The expected future payments are discounted to present value using market yields at 

the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity 

that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

  The GSS, the WSS, and the GESBS, where the current service superannuation charge 

is paid by the Authority to the GESB, are defined contribution schemes. The liabilities 

for current service superannuation charges under the GSS, the WSS, and the GESBS 

are extinguished by the concurrent payment of employer contributions to the GESB.
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Note 4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical experience 

and various other factors that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to 

the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated Depreciated Replacement Cost

This methodology for the valuation of assets is considered the most appropriate for 

Rottnest Island as it is an ‘A’ Class Reserve which cannot readily be transacted and 

therefore, there is no market evidence, ruling out market valuation type methodologies. 

The buildings were accounted for by determining their depreciated replacement cost 

(DRC) via assessments undertaken by Landgate under the Valuation of Land Act 

1978 and in accordance with the Valuer General’s Government Asset Valuation Policy 

7.101 – measurement of asset values. The DRC technique estimates the current cost 

of reproduction or replacement of the buildings, on its current site, less deduction for 

physical deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence and optimisation. When 

assessing the value of land and improvements occupied by an entity, the assessment 

of the land component can have regard to the highest and best use of the land but the 

socio-political, legal, physical and economic restrictions affecting the properties ability 

to realise that potential and the economic constraint imposed on that use by the existing 

improvements is also taken into account. Consequently, some uncertainty exists as to the 

accuracy of its depreciation rates in respect of buildings.

Long Service Leave

Several estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Authority’s long service 

leave provision include expected future salary rates, discount rates, employee retention 

rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may 

impact on the carrying amount of the long service leave provision.

(s)  Assets and services received free of charge or for nominal cost

  Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost that can be reliably 

measured are recognised as income at the fair value of the assets and/or the fair 

value of those services that the Authority would otherwise pay for.  A corresponding 

expense is recognised for services received.  Receipts of assets are recognised in the 

Statement of Financial Position.

  Assets or services received from other State Government agencies are 

separately disclosed under Income from State Government in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income.

(t)  Comparative figures

  Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the 

figures presented in the current financial year.

Note 3. Judgements made by management in applying  
accounting policies

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements 

about the application of accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amounts 

recognised in the financial statements. The Authority evaluates these judgements regularly.

Operating lease commitments

The Authority has entered into a lease for ICT Computer Equipment. It has been 

determined that the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 

to ownership of these Computers. Accordingly, these leases have been classified as 

operating leases.
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Note 5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard

The authority has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for 

annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2013 that impacted on the Authority.

ASB 13 Fair Value Measurement

This Standard defines fair value, sets out a framework for measuring 
fair value and requires disclosures about fair value measurements.  
There is no financial impact.

AASB 119 Employee Benefits

This Standard supersedes AASB 119 (October 2010), making changes 
to the recognition, presentation and disclosure requirements. The 
Authority assessed employee leave patterns to determine whether 
annual leave is a short-term or other long-term employee benefit. The 
resultant discounting of annual leave liabilities that were previously 
measured at the undiscounted amounts is not material.

AASB 1048 Interpretation of Standards

This Standard supersedes AASB 1048 (June 2012), enabling 
references to the Interpretations in all other Standards to be updated 
by reissuing the service Standard.  There is no financial impact.

AASB 2011-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 
13 [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 101, 102, 108, 110, 116, 
117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 128, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136, 138, 139, 140, 141, 
1004, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 4, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 131 & 132]

This Standard replaces the existing definition and fair value 
guidance in other Australian Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations as the result of issuing AASB 13 in September 2011.  
There is no financial impact.

AASB 2011-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from 
AASB 119 (September 2011)[AASB 1, 8, 101, 124, 134, 1049 & 2011-8 
and Int 14]

This Standard makes amendments to other Australian Accounting 
Standards and Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 119 
in September 2011.   The resultant discounting of annual leave 
liabilities that were previously measured at the undiscounted 
amounts is not material.

AASB 2012-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosures – 
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities [AASB 7 & 132]

This Standard amends the required disclosures in AASB 7 to include 
information that will enable users of an entity’s financial statements 
to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements, 
including rights of set-off associated with the entity’s recognised 
financial assets and recognised financial liabilities, on the entity’s 
financial position.  There is no financial impact.

AASB 2012-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from 
Annual Improvements 2009 11 Cycle [AASB 1, 101, 116, 132 & 134 
and Int 2]

This Standard makes amendments to the Australian Accounting 
Standards and Interpretations as a consequence of the annual 
improvements process.  There is no financial impact.

AASB 2012-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Mandatory 
Effective Date of AASB 9 and Transition Disclosures [AASB 9, 2009 
11, 2010 7, 2011 7 & 2011 8]

This Standard amends the mandatory effective date of AASB 9 
Financial Instruments to 1 January 2015 (instead of 1 January 2013).  
Further amendments are also made to numerous consequential 
amendments arising from AASB 9 that will now apply from 1 
January 2015.  There is no financial impact.
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AASB 2012-9 Amendment to AASB 1048 arising from the Withdrawal of  
Australian Int 1039

The withdrawal of Int 1039 Substantive Enactment of Major Tax 
Bills in Australia has no financial impact for the Authority during the 
reporting period and at balance date.  Measurement of tax assets and 
liabilities continues to be measured in accordance with enacted or 
substantively enacted tax law pursuant to AASB 112.46-47.

AASB 2012-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Transition 
Guidance and Other Amendments [AASB 1, 5, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12, 13, 101, 
102, 108, 112, 118, 119, 127, 128, 132, 133, 134, 137, 1023, 1038, 1039, 
1049 & 2011-7 and Int 12]

The Standard introduces a number of editorial alterations and 
amends the mandatory application date of Standards for not for 
profit entities accounting for interests in other entities.  There is no 
financial impact.

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual 
Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments.

Part A of this omnibus Standard makes amendments to other 
Standards arising from revisions to the Australian Accounting 
Conceptual Framework for periods ending on or after 20 December 
2013.  Other Parts of this Standard become operative in later 
periods.  There is no financial impact for Part A of the Standard.

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative

The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically 
permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other 
Pronouncements. Consequently, the Authority has not applied early any of the following 
Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued that may impact the Authority. 
Where applicable, the Authority plans to apply these Standards from their application date:

Operative 
for 

reporting 
periods 

beginning  
on/after

Int 21 Levies

This Interpretation clarifies the circumstances under 
which a liability to pay a government levy imposed 
should be recognised.  There is no financial impact for 
the Authority at reporting date.

1 Jan 2014

AASB 9 Financial Instruments

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, introducing 
a number of changes to accounting treatments.

The mandatory application date of this Standard 
was amended to 1 January 2018 by AASB 2014 1 
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards.  The 
Authority has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2018
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Operative 
for 

reporting 
periods 

beginning  
on/after

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 
127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 
and Int 112 Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities, 
introducing a number of changes to accounting 
treatments.

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred for 
not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards – Transition Guidance 
and Other Amendments.  The adoption of the new 
Standard has no financial impact for the Model Authority 
as it does not impact accounting for related bodies and 
the Authority has no interests in other entities.

1 Jan 2014

AASB 11 Joint Arrangements

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes 
AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures, introduces new 
principles for determining the type of joint arrangement 
that exists, which are more aligned to the actual rights 
and obligations of the parties to the arrangement.

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred 
for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10.  There is 
no financial impact for the Model Authority as the new 
standard continues to require the recognition of the 
Authority’s share of assets and share of liabilities for 
the unincorporated joint operation.

1 Jan 2014

Operative 
for 

reporting 
periods 

beginning  
on/after

AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes 
disclosure requirements in AASB 127 Consolidated and 
Separate Financial Statements, AASB 128 Investments 
in Associates and AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures.

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred 
for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10.  There is no 
financial impact.

1 Jan 2014

AASB 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

The Authority has not yet determined the application or 
the potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2014

AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 
127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 
removing the consolidation requirements of the earlier 
standard whilst retaining accounting and disclosure 
requirements for the preparation of separate financial 
statements.  Mandatory application was deferred for 
not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012 10.  There is no 
financial impact.

1 Jan 2014
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Operative 
for 

reporting 
periods 

beginning  
on/after

AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

This Standard supersedes AASB 128 Investments in 
Associates, introducing a number of clarifications for the 
accounting treatments of changed ownership interest.

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred 
for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10.  The 
adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact 
for the Model Authority as it does not hold investments 
in associates and the accounting treatments for joint 
operations is consistent with current practice.

1 Jan 2014

AASB 1031 Materiality

This Standard supersedes AASB 1031 (February 2010), 
removing Australian guidance on materiality not 
available in IFRSs and refers to guidance on materiality 
in other Australian pronouncements.  There is no 
financial impact.

1 Jan 2014

AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting

This Standard requires specific budgetary disclosures 
in the general purpose financial statements of not for 
profit entities within the General Government Sector. 
The Authority will be required to disclose additional 
budgetary information and explanations of major 
variances between actual and budgeted amounts, 
though there is no financial impact.

Operative 
for 

reporting 
periods 

beginning  
on/after

AASB 2009-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
arising from AASB 9 [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 
112, 118, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 & 1038 
and Int 10 & 12]

[modified by AASB 2010-7]

1 Jan 2015

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 
5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 
136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]

This Standard makes consequential amendments 
to other Australian Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9 in 
December 2010.

AASB 2012-6 amended the mandatory application date 
of this Standard to 1 January 2015.  The Authority has 
not yet determined the application or the potential 
impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2015

AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
arising from the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements 
Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 
132, 133, 136, 138, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 5, 9, 16 & 17]

This Standard gives effect to consequential changes 
arising from the issuance of AASB 10, AASB 11, AASB 
127 Separate Financial Statements and AASB 128 
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.  For not-
for-profit entities it applies to annual reporting period 
beginning on or after 1 January 2014.  The Authority 
has not yet determined the application or the potential 
impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2013
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Operative 
for 

reporting 
periods 

beginning  
on/after

AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
[AASB 132]

This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 
132 to address inconsistencies identified in applying 
some of the offsetting criteria, including clarifying the 
meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of 
set-off” and that some gross settlement systems may 
be considered equivalent to net settlement.  There is no 
financial impact.

1 Jan 2014

AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount 
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets.  

This Standard introduces editorial and disclosure 
changes.  There is no financial impact.

1 Jan 2014

AASB 2013-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge 
Accounting [AASB 139]

This Standard permits the continuation of hedge 
accounting in circumstances where a derivative, which 
has been designated as a hedging instrument, is novated 
from one counterparty to a central counterparty as 
a consequence of laws or regulations.  The Model 
Authority does not routinely enter into derivatives or 
hedges, therefore there is no financial impact.

1 Jan 2014

Operative 
for 

reporting 
periods 

beginning  
on/after

AASB 2013-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards   
Australian Implementation Guidance for Not for Profit 
Entities – Control and Structured Entities [AASB 10, 12 
& 1049].

The amendments, issued in October 2013, provide 
significant guidance in determining whether a not-
for-profit entity controls another entity when financial 
returns are not a key attribute of the investor’s 
relationship.  The Standard has no financial impact in its 
own right, rather the impact results from the adoption 
of the amended AASB 10.

1 Jan 2014

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards   
Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial 
Instruments.

This omnibus Standard makes amendments to other 
Standards arising from the deletion of references to 
AASB 1031 in other Standards for periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2014 (Part B), and, defers the 
application of AASB 9 to 1 January 2017 (Part C).  The 
application date of AASB 9 was subsequently deferred 
to 1 January 2018 by AASB 2014 1.  The Authority has 
not yet determined the application or the potential 
impact of AASB 9, otherwise there is no financial 
impact for Part B.

1 Jan 2014

1 Jan 2017

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards

The Authority has not yet determined the application or 
the potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jul 2014

1 Jan 2015

1 Jan 2016

1 Jan 2018
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Note 6. Trading profit
2014 2013

$000 $000

Sales 142 297

Cost of Sales:

Opening Inventory (30) (32)

Purchases (84) (87)

(114) (119)

Closing Inventory 32 30

Cost of Goods Sold (82) (89)

Trading profit 60 208

Note 7. Provision of services
2014 2013

$000 $000

Accommodation charges 15,232 14,829

Facilities and tours 3,776 3,908

Admission fees 5,416 5,244

Lease and licence income 3,666 3,526

Utility charges 1,742 1,406

Housing rentals 518 503

30,350 29,416

Note 8. Commonwealth grants and contribution
2014 2013

$000 $000

Department of EDU, Employment & Workplace Relations - 2 
Department of Industry, Innovation, Science, Research and 
Tertiary Education 5 - 
Department of Sustainability, Environment, Water, 
Population and Communities 71 - 

76 2

Note 9. Interest revenue
2014 2013

$000 $000

Interest revenue 865 1,050

865 1,050

Interest revenue is sourced from cash and cash equivalents invested in interest  
bearing accounts.
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Note 12. Supplies and services
2014 2013

$000 $000

Contractors – Facilities Operations and Utilities 7,370 7,101

Contractors – Housekeeping 2,942 2,621

Contractors – Other 2,020 1,751

Administration expense 1,999 1,547

Other Staffing Costs 638 748

Repairs and maintenance – Roofing Project 1,500 -

Repairs and maintenance – Other 3,402 3,293

Vehicle leasing 133 94

IT system development 276 6

Marketing expenses 514 647

Other supplies & services costs 409 305

21,203 18,113

Note 10. Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets
2014 2013

$000 $000

Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets

Plant, vehicles and furniture - -

Cost of disposal of non-current assets

Plant, vehicles and furniture (7) (106)

Net gain/(loss) (7) (106)

Note 11. Employee benefits expense
2014 2013

$000 $000

Wages and salaries (a) (c) 10,374 10,017

Superannuation - defined contribution plans (b) 801 854

Superannuation - defined benefit plans (see note 29) 106 96

11,281 10,967

(a)  Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefits tax component, 
leave entitlements including superannuation contribution component.

(b)  Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold State and GESB Super Scheme 
(contributions paid).

(c) Includes redundancy expenses of $153,521

Employment on-costs expenses, such as workers’ compensation insurance and payroll tax are 
included at note 16 'Other Expenses'. 

Employment on-costs liability is included at note 28 'Provisions'.
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Note 14. Finance costs
2014 2013

$000 $000

Finance lease charges 13 37

Fees 266 226

Finance costs expensed 279 263

Note 15. Accommodation expenses
2014 2013

$000 $000

Lease rentals 331 270

Cleaning 21 67

Other accommodation expenses 55 60

407 397

Note 13. Depreciation and amortisation expense
2014 2013

$000 $000

Depreciation

Buildings 2,165 2,150

Computers and electronic equipment 156 72

Furniture 286 253

Plant and vehicles 417 549

Leasehold improvements 5 24

Infrastructure 1,010 951

Total depreciation 4,039 3,999

Amortisation

Intangible assets 125 265

Total amortisation 125 265

Total depreciation and amortisation 4,164 4,264
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Note 18. Services and assets received free of charge
2014 2013

$000 $000

State Government

State Solicitors Office 36 85

Verve Energy 378 -

Total services received free of charge 414 85

Note 19. Inventories
2014 2013

$000 $000

Current

Inventories held for resale

Visitors Centre Stock 6 25

Bike stock 26 5

32 30

Inventories not held for resale

Materials 8 8

Fuels 61 82

69 90

Total Current 101 120

Note 16. Other expenses
2014 2013

$000 $000

Furniture, fittings and equipment maintenance 254 117

Doubtful debts expense 30 30

Employment on-costs (a) 617 564

Research and development 41 29

Other – Write-down of assets 18 54

Audit fees 95 91

1,055 885

 (a)  Includes workers’ compensation insurance and payroll tax employment on-costs. The 
on-costs liability associated with the recognition of annual and long service leave liability 
is included at note 29 'Provisions'. Superannuation contributions accrued as part of the 
provision for leave are employee benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.

Note 17. Grants and subsidies from State Government
2014 2013

$000 $000

State Government Operating Grant 6,700 4,731

Chamber of Commerce & Industry of WA 3 -

Western Australian Planning Commission 17 14

Lotterywest - State Govt Statutory Authority 15 -
Western Australian Police Community Division  
Judicial Services 32 -

6,767 4,745

State Government Operating Grant
The State Government Operating Grant represents the contribution made under the 
Department of Treasury and Finance - Administered Transactions - Grants, Subsidies 
and Transfer Payments, Item 15 - Rottnest Island Authority.
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Note 21. Other financial assets
2014 2013

$000 $000

Current

Term deposits 4,500 14,000

Total current 4,500 14,000

Non current

Term deposits 13,500 4,000

Total non-current 13,500 4,000

Note 20. Receivables
2014 2013

$000 $000

Current

Receivables 386 599

GST receivable 255 436

Interest receivable 479 223

Other receivables  178 152

Prepayments 206 734

Accrued Revenue 112 98

1,616 2,242

Allowance for impairment of receivables (69) (120)

Total current 1,547 2,122

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of receivables

Balance at the start of period 120 90

Doubtful debts expense 30 30

Impairment losses reversed during the period (81) -

Amounts written off during the period - -

Balance at the end of period 69 120

The Authority does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements as security for 

receivables. 
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2014 2013

$000 $000

Works of art

At fair value 15 15

15 15

Work in progress

At cost 3,446 4,621

3,446 4,621

214,737 216,625

 (i)  Land and Buildings were re-valued as at 1 March 2013 by the Western Australian Land 

Information Authority (Valuation Services).The fair value of all land and buildings has been 

determined by applying the non-market value and depreciated replacement cost method. 

Refer note 2(f) ‘Property, Plant, Equipment and Infrastructure’. A desktop valuation of land and 

buildings was conducted by Landgate as at 1 July 2013, but as the variance was immaterial no 

adjustment has been recorded.

Note 22. Property, plant and equipment
2014 2013

$000 $000

Land 

At fair value (i) 128,777 128,777

128,777 128,777

Buildings

At fair value (i) 81,891 80,966

Accumulated depreciation (2,480) (628)

79,411 80,338

Computers and electronic equipment 

At cost 1,148 1,002

Accumulated depreciation (887) (828)

261 174

Furniture

At cost 4,256 3,373

Accumulated depreciation (2,476) (2,181)

1,780 1,192

Plant and Vehicles (excl leased vehicles)

At cost 4,052 4,048

Accumulated depreciation (3,137) (2,830)

915 1,218

Leased Plant and Vehicles

At cost 755 755

Accumulated Depreciation (731) (598)

24 157

Leasehold Improvements 

At cost 296 313

Accumulated depreciation (188) (180)

108 133
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Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the reporting period are set in the table below.

Land Buildings 

Computers 
and 

electronic 
equipment Furniture 

Plant and 
vehicles 

Leasehold 
improve-

ments 
Works  
of art 

Work in 
progress Total 

2014 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000  $000 $000

Carrying amount at start of period 128,777 80,338 174 1,192 1,375 133 15 4,621 216,625

Additions - - - - - - - 6,933 6,933

Transfers (a) - 932 175 1,098 117 - - (8,108) (5,786)

Other disposals - - - (122) (1) - - - (123)

Adjustments - 306 68 (102) (135) (20) - - 117

Classified as held for sale - - - - - - - - -

Revaluation increments - - - - - - - - -

Depreciation - (2,165) (156) (286) (417) (5) - - (3,029)

Carrying amount at end of period 128,777 79,411 261 1,780 939 108 15 3,446 214,737

Land Buildings 

Computers 
and 

electronic 
equipment Furniture 

Plant and 
vehicles 

Leasehold 
improve-

ments 
Works  
of art 

Work in 
progress Total 

2013 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000  $000 $000

Carrying amount at start of period 127,000 76,025 45 651 1,405 157 38 994 206,315

Additions - - - - - - - 7,154 7,154

Transfers  (a) - 154 201 794 519 - - (2,740) (1,072)

Other disposals - (83) - - - - (23) - (106)

Adjustments - - - - - - - (787) (787)

Classified as held for sale - - - - - - - - -

Revaluation increments 1,777 6,392 - - - - - - 8,169

Depreciation - (2,150) (72) (253) (549) (24) - - (3,048)

Carrying amount at end of period 128,777 80,338 174 1,192 1,375 133 15 4,621 216,625

 (a) The rest of the balance has been transferred to infrastructure.
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Note 23. Infrastructure
2014 2013

$000 $000

At fair value 36,041 31,004

Accumulated Depreciation (7,999) (6,960)

28,042 24,044

The revaluation of utility infrastructure was conducted in October 2011 and was 
performed in accordance with an independent valuation by Australian Valuation 
Partners Pty Ltd. The effective date of the valuation was 31 October 2011. 

The revaluation of remaining infrastructure was conducted in July 2012 and was 
performed in accordance with an independent valuation by Australian Valuation 
Partners Pty Ltd. The effective date of the valuation was 30 June 2012.

Fair value for both revaluations was determined on the basis of depreciated  
replacement cost.

2014 2013

$000 $000

Reconciliation

Carrying amount at start of period 24,044 23,908

Additions 5,131 1,072

Revaluation increments - 15

Adjustments (29) -

Disposals (94) -

Depreciation expense (1,010) (951)

Carrying amount at end of period 28,042 24,044

Note 24. Fair Value Measurements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Fair Value 
at end of 

Period
$000 $000 $000 $000

2014

Land (Note 22) - - 128,777 128,777

Buildings (Note 22) - - 79,411 79,411

Infrastructure (Note 23) - - 28,042 28,042

Works of Art (Note 22) - 15 - 15

- 15 236,230 236,245

Valuation techniques to derive Level 2 fair values

Level 2 fair values of Works of Art are derived using the market approach. Market 
evidence of sales prices of comparable Works of Art are used to determine the 
respective values.
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Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Land Buildings
Infra- 

structure
$000 $000 $000

2014

Fair Value at Start of Period 128,777 80,338 24,044

Additions - 932 5,131

Adjustments - 306 (29)
Revaluation Increments / (Decrements) 
recognised in Profit or Loss - - -
Revaluation Increments / (Decrements) 
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income - - -

Disposals - (94)

Depreciation Expense - (2,165) (1,010)

Fair Value at end of period 128,777 79,411 28,042
Total gains or losses for the period included 
in profit or loss, under “Other Gains” - - -

Valuation Processes

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the period.

Fair value is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future 

economic benefits embodied in the asset – i.e. the Depreciated Replacement Cost (DCR). 

DCR is the current replacement cost of an asset less accumulated depreciation calculated 

on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired economic benefit, 

or obsolescence, and optimisation (where applicable) of the asset. Current replacement 

cost is generally determined by reference to the market-observable replacement cost of a 

substitute asset of comparable utility and the gross project size specifications.

Fair value for restricted use land is based on market value, by either using market 

evidence of sales of comparable land that is unrestricted less restoration  costs to return 

the site to a vacant and marketable condition (low restricted use land), or, comparison 

with market evidence for land with low level utility (high restricted use land).

Significant Level 3 inputs used by the Authority are derived and evaluated as follows:

Consumed economic benefit/obsolescence of asset

These are estimated by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation 

Services) for buildings and AVP Valuers for infrastructures.

Selection of land with restricted utility

Fair value for restricted use land is determined by comparison with market evidence for 

land with low level utility. Relevant comparators of land with low level utility are selected 

by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services).
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Basis of Valuation

In the absence of market-based evidence, due to the specialised nature of some non-

financial assets, these assets are valued at Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy on an 

existing use basis. The existing use basis recognises that restrictions or limitations have 

been placed on their use and disposal when they are not determined to be surplus to 

requirements. These restrictions are  imposed by virtue of the assets being held to deliver 

a specific community service.

Description and fair value as at 30 June 2014

$000
Valuation 

technique(s)
Unobservable 

inputs

Range of 
unobservable 

inputs (weighted 
average)

Relationship of 
unobservable 

inputs to  
fair value

Land  

$ 128,777

Market 

Approach

Selection 

of land 

with similar 

approximate 

utility

Average rate 

per hector 

$180,182, range 

being $2,890 to 

$533,981

Restricted 

utility reduced 

estimated fair 

value

Buildings  

$79,411

Depreciated 

Replacement 

Cost

Consumed 

economic 

benefit / 

Obsolescence 

of asset

2.5% per year, 

range being  

5% to 2.5%

Greater 

consumption of 

economic benefit 

or increased 

obsolescence 

lowers fair value

Infrastructure 

$28,042

Depreciated 

Replacement 

Cost

Consumed 

economic 

benefit / 

Obsolescence 

of asset

4.3% per year, 

range being  

2% to 20%

Greater 

consumption of 

economic benefit 

or increased 

obsolescence 

lowers fair value

Reconciliations of the opening and closing balances are provided in Notes 22 and 23.

Note 25 Intangible assets
2014 2013

$000 $000

Right to Receive the Rottnest Dome Building 778 778

Computer software at cost 2,244 1,586

Accumulated amortisation (1,546) (1,464)

1,476 900

Reconciliation

Carrying amount at start of period 900 1,146

Additions 658 19

Disposals - -

Adjustments 43 -

Amortisation expense (125) (265)

Carrying amount at end of period 1,476 900

Note 26. Impairment of assets

There were no indications of impairment to Property, plant, equipment and vehicles, 

Infrastructure or Intangible assets at 30 June 2014. 

The Authority held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during 

the reporting period. At the end of the reporting period other than the right to receive the 

Rottnest Dome building, there were no intangible assets not yet available for use.
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Note 27. Payables
2014 2013

$000 $000

Trade payables 3,997 4,054

Accrued expenses 43 76

Accrued salaries 287 217

4,327 4,347

Note 28. Borrowings

2014 2013

$000 $000

Current

Finance lease liabilities (secured) (a) 115 146

Total current 115 146

Non-current

Finance lease liabilities (secured) (a) 22 138

Total non-current 22 138

 (a)  Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the lessor in 
the event of default.

2014 2013

$000 $000

Assets pledged as security
The carrying amounts of non-current  
assets pledged as security are:

Buses 25 156

25 156

Note 29. Provisions
2014 2013

$000 $000

Current

Employee benefits provision

Annual leave (a) 1,078 986

Long service leave (b) 930 879

Time in lieu 53 30

Superannuation (d) 188 182

Leave purchase 20 24

2,269 2,101

Other provisions

Employment on-costs (c) 102 170

Sinking fund provision 10 4

112 174

2,381 2,275

Non-current

Employee benefits provision

Long service leave (b) 454 412

Super provision – long term 43 43

GESB Superannuation liability long term 309 309

806 764

Other provisions

Employment on-costs (c) 37 37

37 37

843 801
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(d) Defined benefit superannuation plans

Pension Scheme

Pre-transfer 
benefit - 

Gold State 
Superannuation 

Scheme
2014 2013 2014 2013

$000 $000 $000 $000

The amounts recognised in the 
Statement of Comprehensive  
Income are as follows:

Current service cost - - - -
Interest cost (unwinding of the 
discount) 9 9 1 2
Net actuarial losses/(gains)
recognised

13 15 1 (9)

Total included in Employee  
benefits expense 22 24 2 (7)

(see note 11 ‘Employee benefits expense’)

The amounts recognised in the 
Statement of Financial Position  
are as follows:

Present value of unfunded obligations 284 299 41 39
Liability in the statement of 
financial position 284 299 41 39

(a) Annual leave liabilities

Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no 
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the 
reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is 
expected to occur as follows:

2014 2013

$000 $000

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 618 451
More than 12 months after the end of the 
reporting period 460 535

1,078 986

(b) Long service leave liabilities

Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no 
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the 
reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is 
expected to occur as follows:

2014 2013

$000 $000

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 299 293
More than 12 months after the end of the  
reporting period 1,086 998

1,385 1,291

(c) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities

The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of 
employment on-costs including workers' compensation insurance. The provision is 
the present value of expected future payments. The associated expense, apart from 
the unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is disclosed in note 16 'Other Expenses'.
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The principal actuarial assumptions used (expressed as weighted averages) were as follows:

2014 2013

Discount rate 3.69% 3.38%

Future salary increases 5% 5%

Historic summary 2013 2012 2011 2010
$000 $000 $000 $000

Pension Scheme:

Present value of unfunded obligation 299 312 284 296

Fair value of plan assets - - - -

Deficit 299 312 284 296

Pre-transfer Benefit - Gold State 
Superannuation Scheme:

Present value of unfunded obligation 39 59 50 57

Fair value of plan assets - - - -

Deficit 39 59 50 57

Experience adjustments arising  
on plan liabilities:

Pension scheme 12 12 5 5
Pre-transfer Benefit - Gold State 
Scheme (3) 6 (1) 3

Employer funding arrangements for the defined benefit plans 
The amounts recorded for the Gold State Superannuation Scheme relate to the 
scheme as a whole (ie. The pre-transfer benefit component plus the concurrently 
funded benefit component).

Employer contributions of $38,000 are expected to be paid to the Pension 
Scheme in the subsequent annual reporting period.

Pension Scheme

Pre-transfer 
benefit - 

Gold State 
Superannuation 

Scheme
2014 2013 2014 2013

$000 $000 $000 $000

Reconciliation of the unfunded liability 
recognised in the statement of 
financial position is as follows:

Liability at start of period 299 312 39 59

Current service cost - - - -
Interest cost (unwinding of the 
discount) 9 9 1 2
Net actuarial losses/(gains) 
recognised 13 15 1 (9)

Benefits paid (38) (37) - (13)

Liability at end of period 284 299 41 39

Reconciliation of the fair value of plan 
assets is as follows:

Fair value of plan assets at start of year - - - -

Employer contributions 38 37 - 13

Benefits paid (38) (37) - (13)
Fair value of plan assets at  
end of year - - - -
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Note 31. Equity
Contributed Equity 2014 2013

$000 $000

Balance at start of period 50,032 50,032

Contributions by owners - -

Distribution to owners - -

Balance at end of period 50,032 50,032

Reserves 2014 2013

$000 $000

Asset revaluation surplus

Balance at the start of period 189,798 181,614

Net revaluation increments

  Infrastructure - 15

  Land - 1,777

  Buildings - 6,392

Balance at end of period 189,798 189,798

Retained Earnings 2014 2013

$000 $000

Balance at start of period 5,766 4,951

Result for the period 624 815

Balance at end of period 6,390 5,766

Total equity at end of period 246,220 245,596

Note 29. Provisions contd. 
Movements in other provisions 2014 2013

$000 $000

Movements in each class of provisions during the financial 
year, other than employee benefits, are set out below:

Employment on-cost provision

Carrying amount at start of period 207 282

Additional provisions recognised 2 29

Payments/other sacrifices of economic benefits (70) (104)

Carrying amount at end of period 139 207

Note 30. Other Liabilities
2014 2013

$000 $000

Current 

Refundable deposits and bonds 10,422 8,223

Leases in advance 100 100

Deferred Income 544 627

Unclaimed money 83 100

General Provisions 90 85

Total current 11,239 9,135

Non-current 

Leases in advance 733 833

Total non-current 733 833
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2014 2013

$000 $000

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities:

Current Payables (a) (21) (965)

Current Provisions 106 389

Other liabilities 2,105 398

Non-current provisions 42 11

Non-current liabilities (99) (100)

Net GST receipts / (payments) (b) (210) (153)

Change in GST receivables / payables (c) 391 (201)

Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities 182 (603)

 (a)  Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable / payable in respect of GST and the 
receivable / payable in respect of the sale / purchase of non-current assets are not included in 
these items as they do not form part of the reconciling items.

 (b) This is the net GST paid / received, i.e. cash transactions
 (c) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables

Note 32. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows

Reconciliation of Cash

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is 
reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

2014 2013

$000 $000

Cash and cash equivalents 1,977 1,460

Other financial assets (current & non-current) 18,000 18,000

19,977 19,460

Reconciliation of profit after income tax equivalent to net cash flows provided  
by/(used in) operating activities

2014 2013

$000 $000

(Loss) before grants and subsidies from State Government (6,557) (4,015)

Non cash items

Depreciation and amortisation expense 4,164 4,264

Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 7 106

Doubtful debts expense (51) 30

Services received free of charge 414 85

Write-down of assets 18 54

Other non-cash items (542) (7)

(Increase) / decrease in assets:

Current receivables (a) 394 (546)

Current inventories 21 47
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Non-cancellable operating lease commitments 2014 2013

$000 $000

Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the 
balance sheet date but not recognised as liabilities are 
payable as follows:

Within 1 year 282 377

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 671 853

Later than 5 years 2 1

955 1,230

Office accommodation is rented under commercial leases and rent is payable monthly 
in advance. The leases run for six years, with options of a further five years. The rentals 
are subject to review on predetermined dates based on either fixed percentage, CPI or 
market review adjustments.

Office equipment is leased over four year terms with charges payable monthly in 
advance.  Options exist to continue leasing beyond the expiry date or to purchase at 
residual value.

Finance Lease commitments 2014 2013

$000 $000

Minimum lease payment commitments in relation to 
finance leases are payable as follows:

Within 1 year 120 158

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 22 143

Minimum finance lease payments 142 301

Less future finance charges (5) (17)

Present value of finance lease liabilities 137 284

Note 33. Commitments
The commitments below are inclusive of GST where relevant.

Capital expenditure commitments 2014 2013

$000 $000

Capital expenditure commitments, being contracted capital 
expenditure additional to the amounts reported in the 
financial statements, are payable as follows:

Within 1 year 854 3,240

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -

Later than 5 years - -

854 3,240

The capital commitments include amounts for:

Buildings - 520

Infrastructure 152 1,854

Plant Equipment and Vehicles - 311

Software Development 702 -

Computers and Electronic Equipment - 539

Furniture - 16

854 3,240

Other expenditure commitments 2014 2013

$000 $000

Other expenditure commitments of $4,370,000 contracted 
for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as 
liabilities, are payable as follows:

Within 1 year 4,370 1,338

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -

Later than 5 years - -

4,370 1,338
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contaminated – investigation required’. The Authority was successful in applying for 
funding from the Contaminated Sites Management Account (CSMA) to undertake further 
investigative work at Power Station site. Until the nature and extent of contamination 
is identified, it is not practicable to estimate the potential financial effect of addressing 
remediation costs or ongoing monitoring that may be required.

The Authority continues to invest in monitoring activities of other contaminated sites 
including Thomsons Bay and the Landfill.

The Authority is considering the construction a new Waste Water Treatment Plant (WWTP) 
at a new location, this will render the current waste water facility redundant and the site 
will require decommissioning. The site is recognised as an environmental and potential 
a health risk due to long-term discharge of treated effluent into infiltration/evaporation 
ponds located adjacent to the plant. This practice has seen a measurable impact on the 
groundwater quality immediately surrounding the WWTP. Sampling of bores has historically 
shown elevated nitrogen and phosphorus concentrations and also the presence of thermo-
tolerant coliform. The contaminated groundwater from the WWTP could potentially move 
in all directions from the mounded WWTP location, including towards the coast and inland 
towards Herschel Lake and Garden Lake. The site will require assessment of impact and 
risk and subsequently consideration of appropriate management options once the current 
facility is decommissioned.

The commissioned asbestos material survey involved the investigation and identification of 
Asbestos Containing Materials (ACM). A register of asbestos materials has been produced 
for Rottnest Island. Recommended actions and risk control strategies for these materials 
are contained within the asbestos materials register. The RIA has contingency insurance 
due to the possibility of damage to Asbestos and ACM containing building on the island.

Note 35. Events occurring after the end of the reporting period

There are no events that occurred after Statement of Financial Position date which would 
materially affect the financial statements.

The present value of finance leases payable is as follows:

Within 1 year 115 146
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 22 138

Present value of finance lease liabilities 137 284

Included in the financial statements as:

Current (note 28 ‘Borrowings’) 115 146

Non-current (note 28 ‘Borrowings’) 22 138

137 284

The Authority has the option to purchase leased assets at their agreed fair value on expiry 
of the lease. These leasing arrangements do not have escalation clauses, other than in the 
event of payment default. There are no restrictions imposed by these leasing arrangements 
on other financing transactions. Certain finance leases have a contingent rental obligation; 
however these are not material when compared to the total lease payments made.

Note 34. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilitaies

The following contingent liabilities are additional to the liabilities included in the financial 
statements:

Treatment of Contaminated Sites

Under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003, the Authority is required to report known and 
suspected contaminated sites to the Department of Environmental Regulation  (previously 
known as Department of Environment and Conservation (DEC)). In accordance with the Act, 
the Department of Environmental Regulation (DER) classifies these sites on the basis of the 
risk to human health, the environment and environmental values. Where sites are classified 
as ‘contaminated – remediation required’ or ‘possibly contaminated – investigation required’, 
the Authority may have a liability in respect of investigation or remediation expenses.

During the 2013-2014 financial year the Authority has managed one suspected contaminated 
site that had been reported to DER. The Power station site has been classified as ‘possibly 
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Note 36. Explanatory statement
Details and reasons for significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2013 
and between the actual results for 2013 and 2014 are shown below. Significant variations 
are considered to be those greater than 10% and $200,000.

Significant variances between estimates and actual for 2014

  2014 
Estimate

2014 
Actual Variance Variance

$000 $000 $000 %

Other revenues 144 406 (262) (65)

Depreciation and amortisation 4,781 4,164 617 15

Other expenses 487 974 (487) (50)
Services received free of charge - 414 (414) (100)

Other revenue

Includes a number of insurance claims (total of $224k) which were unforseen due to 
damage recoups.

Depreciation and amortisation

The depreciation variance is due to asset additions occurring later in the year than 
estimated.

Other expenses

The variance is primarily related to the movement of Payroll tax from Supplies and 
Services to Other Expenses.

Services received free of charge

Increase is substantially due to the receipt of Solar Panels from Verve Energy to the value 
of $378,000. The remainder is legal services received from the State Solicitors Office.

 

Significant variances between actual results for 2013 and 2014

Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 10% and $200,000.

  2014 2013 Variance Variance

$000 $000 $000 %
Grants and subsidies from 
State Government

6,767 4,745 2,022 43

Supplies and services 21,203 18,113 3,090 17

Services and assets  
received free of charge

414 85 329 387

Grants and subsidies from State Government

The State Government operating grant to the Authority was increased by $2m. 

Supplies and Services

The variance is primarily related to the increased expense resulting from the Roofing 
Project.

Services and assets received free of charge

Increase is substantially due to the receipt of Solar Panels from Verve Energy to the value 

of $378,000.
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Note 37. Financial Instruments 
(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies

Financial instruments held by the Authority are cash and cash equivalents, cash 
equivalents, borrowings, finance leases, Treasurer’s advances, loans and receivables 
and payables. The Authority has limited exposure to financial risks. The Authority’s 
overall risk management program focuses on managing the risks identified below.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Authority’s receivables defaulting 
on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Authority. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at end of the reporting period in relation to 
each class of recognised financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those 
assets inclusive of any provisions for impairment as shown in the table at note 36(c) 
‘Financial Instrument Disclosures’ and note 2(n) ‘Receivables’.

The Authority has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and services are 
made to customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition, receivable balances 
are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Authority’s exposure to 
bad debts is minimal. At the end of the reporting period there were no significant 
concentrations of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises when the Authority is unable to meet its financial obligations as 
they fall due. The Authority is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal 
course of business.

The Authority’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and 
flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, loans and finance leases. The Authority 
has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows by monitoring forecast cash flows 
to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates 
and interest rates will affect the Authority’s income or the value of its holdings of 
financial instruments. The Authority does not trade in foreign currency and is not 
materially exposed to other price risks. 

The Authority is not exposed to interest rate risk on financial liabilities as all borrowings 
are finance leases at fixed interest rates. The table at note 36(c) details the interest 
rate sensitivity on cash and cash equivalents, all of which is invested in interest bearing 
accounts. 

(b) Categories of financial instruments
In addition to cash and cash equivalents, the carrying amounts of each of the 
following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the 
reporting period are:

2014 2013
$000 $000

Financial Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,977 1,460
Receivables (a) 1,292 1,686
Term deposits 18,000 18,000

Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost 4,463 4,631

(a)  The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable)
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Note 37. Financial Instruments contd.
(c) Financial Instrument Disclosures

Credit Risk 
The following table discloses the Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk, interest rate exposures and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The Authority’s maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of the financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing analysis of financial assets 
that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is based on information provided to senior management of the Authority.

The Authority does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to the financial assets it holds.

Aged analysis of financial assets

Past due but not impaired

 
Carrying 
Amount

Not past 
due and not 

impaired
Up to 1 
month

1 - 3  
months

3 months  
to 1 year

1 - 5  
years

More than 5 
years

Impaired 
financial 

assets
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

2014
Cash and cash equivalents 1,977 1,977 - - - - - -
Receivables (a) 1,292 1,273 14 2 3 - - -
Other financial assets 18,000 18,000 - - - - - -

21,269 21,250 14 2 3 - - -

2013
Cash and cash equivalents 1,460 1,460 - - - - - -
Receivables (a) 1,686 1,451 121 114 - - - -

Other financial assets 18,000 18,000 - - - - - -
21,146 20,911 121 114 - - - -

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable)



101Rottnest Island Authority      |      Annual Report      |      2013-2014

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure
The following table details the Authority’s interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities.  
The maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows. The interest exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item.

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities

Interest rate exposure Maturity dates

 

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

rate
Carrying 
Amount

Fixed 
interest 

rate

Variable 
Interest 

rate

Non- 
Interest 
Bearing

Adjustment 
for 

discounting
Nominal 
amount

Up to 1 
month

1 – 3 
months

3 months 
to 1 year

1 - 5  
years

More than 
5 years

% $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

2014
Financial Assets
Cash and cash 
equivalents 2.5 1,977 - 1,359 617 - 1,977 1,977 - - - -
Receivables (a) 1,292 - - 1,292 - 1,292 1,292 - - - -
Other financial 
assets 4.03 18,000 18,000 - - - 18,000 - - 4,500 13,500 -

21,269 18,000 1,359 1,909 - 21,269 3,269 - 4,500 13,500 -

Financial Liabilities
Payables 4,325 - - 4,325 4,325 4,325 - - - -
Finance lease 
liabilities 5.75 137 137 - - 154 11 23 90 30 -

4,462 137 - 4,325 4,779 4,336 23 90 30 -

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable)
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Note 37. Financial Instruments contd.

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities

Interest rate exposure Maturity dates

 

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

rate
Carrying 
Amount

Fixed 
interest 

rate

Variable 
Interest 

rate

Non- 
Interest 
Bearing

Adjustment 
for 

discounting
Nominal 
amount

Up to 1 
month

1 – 3 
months

3 months 
to 1 year

1 - 5  
years

More 
than 5 
years

% $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

2013
Financial Assets
Cash and cash 
equivalents 2.75 1,460 - 1,049 411 1,460 1,460 - - - -
Receivables (a) 1,686 - - 1,686 1,686 1,686 - - - -
Other financial assets 4.23 18,000 18,000 - - 18,000 5,000 2,500 6,500 4,000 -

21,146 18,000 1,049 2,097 21,146 8,146 2,500 6,500 4,000 -

Financial Liabilities
Payables 4,347 - - 4,347 4,347 4,347 - - - -

Finance lease liabilities 5.75 284 284 - - 302 11 23 102 166 -
4,631 284 - 4,347 4,649 4,358 23 102 166 -

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable)
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis

- 100 basis points +100 basis points

 
Carrying 
Amount Surplus Equity Surplus Equity

2014 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,359 (14) (14) 14 14

Total Increase/(Decrease) (14) (14) 14 14

- 100 basis points +100 basis points

 
Carrying 
Amount Surplus Equity Surplus Equity

2013 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,049 (10) (10) 10 10

Total Increase/(Decrease) (10) (10) 10 10

Fair values
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, 
whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts that represent 
a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.

Note 38.  Remuneration of members of the accountable authority  
and senior officers

Remuneration of Members of the accountable authority

The number of members of the accountable authority, whose total of fees, salaries, 
superannuation, non monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall 
within the following bands are: 

2014 2013

$

 0 – 10,000 - 1

10,001 – 20,000 5 5

20,001 – 30,000 1 1

$000 $000

Base remuneration and superannuation 109 108

Annual leave and long service leave accruals - -

Other benefits - -
The total remuneration of members of the 
Accountable Authority 109 108

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Authority 
in respect of members of the Accountable Authority. 

No members of the Accountable Authority are members of the Pension Scheme.
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Note 39. Remuneration of auditor
Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect of the audit for the current 
financial year is as follows:

2014 2013

$000 $000

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and 
performance indicators 99 95

The amounts disclosed above differ from the amounts recognised in note 16 ‘Other 
expenses’ and represent current and final audit fees for the current year financial statement.

Note 40.Supplementary financial information
Write-offs approved by the Board 2014 2013

$000 $000

Amounts already provided for and written off as 
uncollectible - 41

- 41

Note 38.  Remuneration of members of the accountable authority  
and senior officers contd.

Remuneration of Senior Officers

The number of senior officers, other than senior officers reported as members of the 
accountable authority, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non monetary 
benefits and other benefits for the financial year fall within the following bands are:

2014 2013

   $

30,001 - 40,000 - 3

120,001 - 130,000 - 2

130,001 - 140,000 1 -

150,001 – 160,000 1 2

160,001 - 170,000 1 1

180,001 – 190,000 1 -

190,001 – 200,000 1 -

250,001 – 260,000 - 1

280,001 – 290,000 1 -

$000 $000

Base remuneration and superannuation 1,057 1,013

Annual leave and long service leave accruals 84 29

Other benefits 64 35

The total remuneration of senior officers 1,205 1,077

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Authority 
in respect of senior officers other than senior officers reported as members of the 
accountable authority.

No senior officers are members of the Pension Scheme.
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Note 41. Schedule of income and expenses by service

Schedule of income and expenses by service

Segment information has been disclosed by service. The two services of the Authority are:

Service 1: Provision of Services to Visitors

This service relates to the provision and operation of affordable recreational and holiday 

facilities with particular regard for the needs of persons usually resident in the State, and 

who wish to visit or stay on the Island as a family group.

Service 2: Conservation of the Natural and Built Environment

This service relates to the maintenance and protection of the Island’s natural and  

built environment.

The Authority operates within one geographical segment (the Western Australian  

public sector).
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Services to Visitors
Conservation of 

Environment Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

INCOME
Revenue
Sales 141 293 1 4 142 297
Provision of services 30,311 29,375 40 41 30,350 29,416
Commonwealth grants and contributions 5 2 71 - 76  2  
Interest revenue 865 1,050 - - 865 1,050
Other revenues 461 224 27 80 488 304
Gains         
Gains on disposal of non-current assets - - - - - - 
Total Income 31,783 30,944 138 125 31,921 31,069

EXPENSES
Cost of sales 80 88 2 1 82 89
Employee benefits expense 9,142 8,784 2,139 2,183 11,281 10,967
Supplies and services 20,249 17,360 954 753 21,203 18,113
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4,041 4,107 123 157 4,164 4,264
Finance costs 260 244 19 19 279 263
Accommodation expenses 381 363 26 34 407 397
Loss on disposal of non-current assets 7 97 - 9 7 106
Other expenses 971 719 84 166 1,055 885

Total Expenses 35,131 31,762 3,347 3,322 38,478 35,084
Profit/(loss) before grants and subsidies from State Government (3,348) (818) (3,209) (3,197) (6,557) (4,015)
Grants and subsidies from State Government 3,727 2,732 3,040 2,013 6,767 4,745
Services received free of charge 414 78 - 7 414 85
Profit / (loss) for the period 793 1,992 (169) (1,177) 624 815
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We hereby certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and appropriate for assisting users to assess 

the Rottnest Island Authority’s performance and fairly represent the performance of the Rottnest Island Authority for the financial year 

ended 30 June 2014.

John Driscoll 
Chairman

15 September 2014

Robert McDonald 
Member

15 September 2014

Othmar Beerli 
Chief Finance Officer

15 September 2014
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Rottnest Island visitors enjoy recreational and holiday experiences in healthy natural and 

cultural environments.

The Rottnest Island Authority’s (RIA) key performance indicators (KPIs) provide a guide 

to its performance towards achievment of its desired outcome.  State public sector policy 

requires effectiveness and efficiency indicators to demonstrate this performance.  By 

their nature, these indicators are very high level and attempt to encompass all the RIA’s 

operations and costs.  For example, the efficiency indicators are required to encompass 

all relevant costs, including corporate overheads, for the two services respectively.  

The relationship between the RIA’s KPIs and services to Government outcomes is outlined 

in the table below. 

Government Goal: Social and Environmental Responsibility  

Ensuring that economic activity is managed in a socially and environmentally responsible 

manner for the long-term benefit of the State.

Key Performance Indicators  
Services Provided to 

the Community

Effectiveness
• Visitor satisfaction with the Rottnest Island experience

• Health of Island’s natural environment

• Health of Island’s cultural heritage 

1. Recreational and 
holiday services

2. Natural 
environment and 
cultural heritage 
management

Efficiency 
• Average cost of recreational and holiday services provided 

per visitor

• Average cost of natural environment and cultural heritage 
management per Reserve hectare

The RIA regularly reviews and amends its indicators to reflect changes in a variety 

of factors impacting the Island.  These could be visitor and community priorities for 

Rottnest Island, or changes in technology that enable more sophisticated measures to 

be implemented.   

The RIA also has a suite of operational and commercial indicators that are used to 

manage and improve its performance.  As well as comparing results to an annual 

target, comparisons to previous years’ results are included where available to enable 

performance trends to be identified. 

1. Visitor satisfaction with the Rottnest Island Experience

An independent research company (Savant Surveys and Strategies) is engaged to 

survey the Island’s visitors.  Visitors are selected at random and requested to complete 

questionnaires.  There were 1,811 completed questionnaires providing a confidence level 

of 95% with an error rate of +/- 2.3%. 

This indicator summarises a range of aspects addressed in the survey.  Respondents are 

asked to rate Rottnest Island based on their satisfaction or perception of: 

• Recreational and holiday services and facilities;

• General services and facilities such as public toilets and seating;

• Accommodation facilities and services;

• Natural environment and cultural heritage; and

• Safety and cleanliness of the Island. 

Respondents are asked to provide an overall rating of their experience compared to 

expectations of their visit to Rottnest Island. 

Desired Outcome
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Visitor Rating
2013-14 
Target 

2013-14 
Result

2012-13  
Result

2011-12 
Result

2010-11 
Result

Met or exceeded expectations 97% 97% 97% 97% 94%

Comments

Rottnest Island continues to provide the vast majority of visitors with an experience that 

meets or exceeds their expectations. 

2. Health of Rottnest Island’s Natural Environment   

This indicator is comprised of a suite of three indicators that aim to (1) provide information 

about the condition/health of the natural environment and (2) provide an indication of the 

environmental performance of the organisation’s operations (including waste management, 

water utilities, accommodation etc).

The results are calculated by the RIA’s own staff who are qualified in environmental 

management.  These indicators comprise: 

• Percentage of conditions compliant with operating licences;

• Percentage of EarthCheck benchmarks being met or exceeded; and 

• Average viability rating of focal conservation targets (health of biodiversity).

2.1 Percentage of conditions compliant with operating licences 

The RIA is the occupier of various prescribed premises as defined by the Environmental 

Protection Act 1986 (EP Act).  The EP Act requires a premise that causes an emission 

or alters the nature of volume of the waste, noise, odour or electromagnetic radiation 

above production or design capacity to hold a licence.  Licences are usually subject to 

various operating conditions to ensure the prescribed premises are at low risk of causing 

environmental harm or pollution. 

The RIA abstracts water from fresh and saline sub-surface sources for potable water supply 

on the Island.  To abstract from subsurface water sources the RIA is required to obtain a 

water abstraction licence under Rights in Water and Irrigation Act 1914 which is administered 

by the Department of Water. 

The RIA expanded its groundwater abstraction scheme and constructed a waste water 

treatment plant in the early 1990s. As a result the Environmental Protection Authority (EPA) 

under the EP Act imposed a suite of Ministerial Statements with respect to commissioning, 

operating and monitoring conditions required of the RIA for the construction and on-going 

management of these activities that still operate today.

Several of the RIA’s operations and facilities are subject to the Western Australian Health 

Act 1911 and are required to comply with various regulations, guidelines and licence 

conditions administered by the Department of Health.

This indicator measures the percentage of licence conditions that were compliant based on 

the average of two assessments conducted during the year. 

2013/14 
Target 

2013/14 
Result 

2012/13 
Result

Comments 

100% 92% 95% A combined total of 32 non-compliances 
were recorded for the two annual 
assessments. 

Comments

The non-compliances concerned the following aspects of Island management: landfill, water 

supply, Ministerial water direction 324 and composting toilets. 

All non-compliances did not result in any visitor risk.
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2.3  Average viability rating of focal conservation targets  
(health of biodiversity) 

The Nature Conservancy’s Conservation Action Planning (CAP) process has been applied 

internationally to thousands of conservation estates. In 2011, the RIA adopted CAP as its 

standard for planning, implementing and measuring success of conservation practices on 

the Island.  Through the CAP process, five Focal Conservation targets were established:

1. Woodland Health

2. Limestone Health

3. Coastal Habitat

4. Wetlands

5. Quokkas

Indicators and acceptable ranges of variation were established for each focal target 

in order to determine the current and desired viability status (or “health”) of each 

target. These were established through a series of workshops, consultation with key 

stakeholders, environmental advisors, and analysis of past research and monitoring data.

The viability ‘status’ reflects the ‘health’ of the associated conservation target, which in more 

general terms indicates the ability of a conservation target to withstand or recover from most 

natural or anthropogenic disturbances and thus to persist over long time periods.

The rating scales of very good, good, fair or poor are based on a quantitative assessment 

of each aspect.  However, the quantitative measure for each aspect is different.  The 

ratings for each aspect are then averaged to arrive at an overall rating. The results for the 

year are provided in the table below:  

2013-14 
Target 

2013-14 
Result 

2012-13 
Result

Comments 

Rating 
Good 
(75%)

Rating 
Good 

(83%)

Rating 
Good 
(77%)

The overall target was successfully met and 
within an acceptable range of variation.  

2.2  Percentage of EarthCheck benchmarks being met or exceeded 

The RIA is registered under the EarthCheck Sustainability program, a worldwide 

recognised and independent sustainability accreditation program for the tourism and 

hospitality industry.  

The RIA currently has accreditation to the Bronze level and is progressing towards the 

Silver level, and ultimately the Gold level.  This indicator measures the percentage of 

EarthCheck benchmarks that were met or exceeded.  The benchmarks are approved 

by EarthCheck’s governing body (EC3 Global) and are based on industry sector and/

or regional benchmarks relevant to the organisation being assessed.  Rottnest Island is 

mainly benchmarked against the world-wide tourism industry. 

A positive result for each aspect is achieved when the measure meets or exceeds the 

benchmark. The overall result for the year is provided in the table below: 

2013-14 
Target 

2013-14 
Result 

2012-13 
Result

Comments 

90% 86% 81% Of the benchmarks, 53% were at or above 
best practice, 33% were at or above 
baseline and 14% were below baseline.  
Several aspects require improvement 
including potable water use, eco-labelled 
pesticides, waste recycling, recycled paper 
products and community involvement. Good 
performance was achieved in regard to energy 
consumption and use of cleaning products.
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3. Health of Rottnest Island’s Cultural Heritage 

This indicator comprises three aspects which are monitored using selected measures 

to indicate the state of Rottnest Island’s cultural heritage.  The results for the measures 

are reported as a percentage of the ‘ideal state’. The measures are calculated by RIA 

staff who are qualified in cultural heritage management. The results for the measures of 

Rottnest Island’s cultural heritage are listed below: 

Aspect Measure 

*2013-14 
Target

%

2013-14 
Result

%

2012-13 
Result

%

2011-12 
Result

%

2010-11

Results  
%

Identification

The proportion of 
heritage listed places with 
statements of significance

70-89 75 75 75 72

The proportion of 
collection heritage items 
recorded on database 
compared to currently 
known number of items

90-100 92 95 99 80

Protection

The proportion of 
developments that 
follow heritage legal 
requirements and 
conservation policies 

90-100 63 82 83 82

Conservation

The proportion of State-
registered places meeting 
condition targets

75-89 75 75 73 67

The proportion of State-
registered places with 
conservation plans 10 or 
less years old

<30 10 13 13 13

The RIA’s targets are approved by its governing body in relation to its functions under the Rottnest 
Island Authority Act 1987, including the conditions imposed on the RIA by the Act.  For example, the RIA 
is only required to restore man-made resources to the extent to which its resources allow (s.11(2)(c)).   

Comments 

Identification

There are 144 places on the RIA’s Heritage Asset Register, of which 61 are heritage-listed 

with the Heritage Council of Western Australia (HCWA), and 16 Aboriginal sites registered 

with the Department of Aboriginal Affairs (DAA) under the Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972. 

Performance in these areas was maintained at 75% of all 144 heritage places having 

Statements of Significance.

Collections management has retained a focus of recording heritage collection items 

resulting in a significant amount of accessioned items for the year (409 objects and 

photographs). It is estimated that the total number of items is approximately 2,900 in to 

the database of which 2,673 were entered. This total is adjusted annually based on the 

discovery of stored but unrecorded artefacts and new acquisitions. 

Protection

There were eight developments that required heritage assessment during the year of 

which five were fully compliant.  Those that did not comply were considered because 

either the required referral was made retrospectively or the advice from the State 

Heritage Office in regard to a referral was not accepted. 

Conservation

The RIA continues to maintain and repair its heritage buildings and structures focusing not 

only on the high use visitor areas but also on more remote but significant military buildings.  

A total average score for State-registered places (Buildings and Other sites) meeting 

condition targets for 2013/14 was 75% which was just within the target score of 75-89%.  

In relation to current conservation plans, the RIA is notable to allocate the required 

funding to this area of cultural heritage management. There are 61 State-registered 

HCWA places and 16 State-registered DAA places (total 77). Of these 77 places, eight 

(10%) have Conservation Plans ten years old or less. 
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The reduced number of places having conservation plans ten years old or less is 

mainly due to places in areas such as Kingstown and Thomson Bay Settlement having 

Conservation Plans older than ten years. 

Efficiency Indicators

Service One: Recreational and Holiday Services 

This indicator reflects the cost of providing Rottnest Island’s recreational and holiday 

services on a per visitor basis. The quantity of ‘visitors’ is determined from the number of 

people arriving by commercial ferry services only.  The indicator is intended to track the 

level of resources used to service Rottnest Island visitors.  

The indicator is calculated by dividing the total annual cost of providing all holiday and 

recreation related services to visitors, by the number of visitors for the year.  

Title 
2013-14* 

Target 
2013-14 
Result 

2012-13 
Result

2011-12  
Result

2010-11 
Result

2009-10 
Result**

Average cost 
of recreational 
and holiday 
services 
provided per 
visitor

$103 $114 $108 $104 $84 $99

* Target based on the annual budget allocated to this service.  

Comments: 

The result reflects additional expenditure required for the maintenance of utility 

infrastructure and holiday accommodation that was not reflected in the original budgets. 

Service Two: Natural Environment and Cultural Heritage Management  

This indicator relates to the cost of managing Rottnest Island’s natural environment and 

cultural heritage.  Its purpose is to track the level of resources applied to these functions. 

The indicator is calculated by dividing the total cost of managing the natural environment and 

cultural heritage by the Rottnest Island Reserve’s total area of 5,669 hectares.  The Reserve 

refers to the land and waters defined in Part 1 of the Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987.

Title 
2013-14* 

Target 
2013-14 
Result 

2012-13 
Result

2011-12 
Result

2010-11 
Result

2009-10 
Result

Average cost 
of natural 
environment 
and cultural 
heritage 
management 
per Reserve 
hectare

$724 $591 $587 $790 $792 $613

*Target based on the annual budget allocated to this service.

Comments: 

The result for this KPI reflects budgeted funds on this service being reduced and 

redirected to the provision of services to visitors, Service One opposite.

Ministerial directives 

Nil.
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Pricing Policies 

The Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987 

requires that overall revenue is adequate 

to meet the Authority’s expenditure. 

Therefore, the Act allows the Authority to 

have a pricing policy whereby commercial 

services are priced to recover the cost 

of its commercial and non-commercial 

operations, such as environmental and 

cultural heritage management.  Prices are 

set to achieve these objectives, and are 

regularly reviewed, taking into account 

market sensitivities and competitiveness. 

The prevailing fees and charges are either 

‘unregulated’, such as accommodation 

and recreational services, and only 

require Authority approval, or ‘regulated’, 

such as admission and mooring fees, 

which are proposed by the Authority for 

approval by Government. 

Several fees and charges were increased 

in 2013/14, mostly in line with the 

Consumer Price Index, consistent with the 

Authority’s strategic objectives. 

Capital Investment 

Internally funded capital investment for 

2013/14 was $6.5m. Investments include:

• Refurbishment of Campground 

facilities, including new camp kitchen 

and ablutions.

• Resurfacing of Bathurst Tennis Courts

• Interior refurbishment of 29 units in 

Geordie and Longreach Bays.

• Extension of the Visitor Centre.

• Construction of the Lakes walkway 

which forms part of the Rottnest 

Wadjemup Walk Trail.

• Installation of a new 250kL/day 

containerised seawater  

desalination unit.

• Improvements to infrastructure 

including sewer pump station 

upgrades, seawater and freshwater 

bore redevelopment, purchase of a 

power station fuel tank, waste water 

plant dewatering improvements and 

road repairs.

• Upgrades to ICT hardware and 

software, including the implementation 

of a new Financial Management 

Information System.

Board and Committee Remuneration

ROTTNEST ISLAND AUTHORITY

Position Name
Type of 

remuneration
Period of  

membership
Gross/actual 
remuneration

Chair John Driscoll  Annual Dec 2010 – Jun 2015 $29,600

Deputy Chair Stephen Lauder  Annual Jul 2012 – Jun 2017 $14,000

Member Robert McDonald  Annual Jul 2011 – Jun 2015 $14,000

Member Suzanne Hunt  Annual May 2010 – Jun 2015 $14,000

Member Sally Hollis  Annual Dec 2010 – Nov 2014 $14,000

Member Dr Peter Hick  Annual Aug 2011 – Jul 2015 $14,000
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The complex nature of the RIA’s 

business is reflected in a wide variety 

of occupational groups within the 

organisation which range from customer 

service and sales representatives to 

coach captains, environmental scientists 

and educators, professionals and 

administrators. The seasonal nature of the 

business is an additional challenge for the 

RIA as it strives to match its workforce to 

meet visitor demands.

In 2013/14 the RIA employed 107 full time 

equivalents (FTE) over the year. The RIA 

remains committed to more flexible work 

practices incorporating part time staff and 

the use of different staffing arrangements 

to meet seasonal demands. 

Employee Profile

Year ending
June 
2014

June 
2013

Permanent 90 74

Fixed Term 28 40

Casual 13 19

During 2013/14 33 new appointments 

were made. Almost all of which were to 

fill existing positions or as a result of 

an internal re-structure. 11 permanent 

or fixed-term staff elected to leave the 

RIA in 2013/14 (representing a 9% staff 

turnover) compared to 12 staff in 2012/13 

(8% turnover).

Workforce Planning and  
Staff Development

The RIA has developed a Workforce and 

Diversity Plan to help identify current and 

future workforce needs over the next three 

years. The plan incorporates strategies 

that respond to sector-wide workforce 

issues and is combined with our Equal 

Opportunity Management Plan. Central to 

this plan are the priorities to attract and 

retain appropriately skilled staff,  

offer ongoing development opportunities 

and identify emerging leaders for 

succession planning.

The RIA continues to promote a workplace 

which encourages staff learning and 

development. Staff received support for 

attendance at workshops and seminars, 

study assistance for formal studies, 

professional development assistance and 

conference attendance.

Cross Cultural Awareness

As part of further achieving and 

understanding the importance of the 

Reconciliation Action Plan the RIA 

provides Cross Cultural Awareness 

Training (CCAT) for our employees on an 

annual basis. A total of 17 people attended 

the training in 2013/14, bringing the 

numbers of fixed term and permanent 

employees who have completed the 

course to 87%.

Substantive Equality

The RIA is committed to the elimination 

of systemic discrimination from all its 

policies, practices and services. The 

Human Resources Officer is now trained 

in and acts as a Grievance Officer, to 

be the first point of contact to deal with 

complaints related to inappropriate and 

potentially unlawful behaviour.

Human Resources
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Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes 

The RIA continued providing access-

friendly services for people with disabilities 

in line with the six outcomes of its 

Disability Access and Inclusion Plan 2012-

2017. In June 2014 a seventh outcome was 

put forward for public comment and will 

be finalised early in the financial year. The 

outcomes are:

People with disabilities have the same 

opportunities as other people to access 

the services of and any events organised 

by the Rottnest Island Authority.

All events and information about Rottnest 

Island are developed with consideration 

for people with special needs. The 

RIA continued its commitment to the 

Companion Card program for Island tours, 

transport and bike hire.

People with disabilities have the same 

opportunities as other people to access 

the buildings and other facilities of the 

Rottnest Island Authority.

The RIA’s Sustainable Development 

Guidelines require consideration of 

disability access for all proposals.

Access-friendly accommodation is 

available for those requiring this facility, 

as are motorised wheelchairs (gophers), 

adult 'trikes' and tandem bikes, and a 

bus with wheelchair lift / coach with 

wheelchair hoist.

People with disabilities receive 

information from the Rottnest Island 

Authority in a format that will enable 

them to access the information as 

readily as other people.

The RIA supports the "You’re Welcome 

WA" access initiative. People can find 

information about disabled access on 

Rottnest Island on the RIA’s website at 

www.rottnestisland.com. Alternative 

format information is provided via virtual 

tours of accommodation units and free 

audio podcasts about the Island and its 

history. The website complies with the 

State Government Access Guidelines for 

Information, Services and Facilities.

People with disabilities have the same 

opportunities as other people to make 

complaints to the Rottnest Island 

Authority.

The RIA actively encourages people to 

provide feedback and offers a variety of 

means for this: telephone, post, email and 

fax or by completing the ‘contact us’ form 

on the website. All formal complaints are 

registered and followed up appropriately in 

order to achieve resolution. 

People with disabilities receive the 

same level and quality of service 

from the staff of the Rottnest Island 

Authority as other people.

Providing a friendly and welcoming service 

is one of the RIA’s values and operating 

principles. Regular staff training ensures 

that customers receive the same level and 

quality of service.

People with disabilities have the same 

opportunities as other people to 

participate in any public consultation by 

the Rottnest Island Authority.

Public consultation is advertised in the 

media and on the RIA’s website. Feedback 

can be provided in electronic or written 

format.

Draft Outcome 7 - People with 

disabilities have the same opportunities 

as other people to access employment 

at Rottnest Island Authority. 

The RIA has inclusive and accessible 

recruitment practices and provides 

appropriate support to employees with 

disabilities to carry out their employment 

responsibilities. The RIA encourages 

employees to disclose their disability, 

provides flexible working arrangements 

where possible and is constantly striving 

to improve disability education and 

awareness.
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Compliance with Public Sector  
Standards and Ethical Codes 

The RIA continues to fully comply with all 

Public Sector Standards.

The RIA focused its attention on 

continuing to implement a high standard 

of ethical decision making. To achieve this, 

the RIA runs an annual Accountable and 

Ethical Decision Making (AEDM) course. 

27 employees completed the course in 

2013/2014 bringing the total of fixed 

term and permanent employees to have 

completed the course to 87%. 

Recordkeeping Plan 

The RIA’s Recordkeeping Plan was 

approved by the State Records 

Commission in December 2005. A 

review was undertaken and an updated 

Recordkeeping Plan was provided to the 

State Records Office in June 2011.

Within the RIA, recordkeeping compliance 

is achieved by:

• maintaining the system infrastructure 

at latest release levels to ensure 

equivalence with require standards.

• regularly auditing the use of the 

TRIM Context recordkeeping system 

to ensure its effectiveness and 

efficiency in meeting compliance and 

operational requirements.

• ensuring the Authority Induction 

Program provides new employees 

with information regarding 

their recordkeeping roles and 

responsibilities.

• ensuring all new staff successfully 

complete an online Recordkeeping 

Awareness course.

• providing all relevant employees with 

TRIM Records Management training.

• regularly providing employees 

with information on contemporary 

recordkeeping practices.

• providing ongoing assistance to  

TRIM users.

Occupational Safety & Health 

In accordance with the Occupational 

Safety and Health Act 1984, the RIA and 

its Executive continues to be committed to 

providing and maintaining a safe and healthy 

environment for its staff, visitors, volunteers 

and contractors where the risk of harm is as 

low as reasonably possible. An integration of 

Occupational Safety and Health (OSH) and 

Risk Management has been implemented in 

2013/14 to coordinate the approach to OSH. 
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Injury Management System

The Authority has an injury management 

policy which specifies that it will comply 

with all of the requirements of the Workers’ 

Compensation and Injury Management 

Act 1981, which includes the development 

of effective return to work plans as well 

as a proposed comprehensive Injury 

Management System. 

The Authority is strongly committed 

to consulting with staff in relation to 

OSH matters, and enabling all staff to 

contribute to decisions that may affect 

their safety and health at work. The OSH 

Committee has continued to operate, 

with meetings held monthly to discuss 

and resolve occupational safety and 

health issues, review hazard and incident 

reports, and review progress against the 

Occupational Safety and Health Action 

Plan. There are eight OSH representatives 

who play an important part in the 

investigation of hazards and reporting 

of incidents to the Committee. Regular 

workplace inspections are conducted 

by the representatives and an agency-

wide OHS management system audit is 

scheduled based on the WorkSafe Plan 

assessment tool.

The Authority’s continued drive to 

maintain a safe and healthy environment 

is reflected in the annual figures for 

2013/14.  The RIA was able to meet two 

out of the five targets set by the Public 

Sector Commissioner's Circular: 2012-

05 Code of Practice Occupational Safety 

and Health in the WA Public Sector. There 

was one claim/injury requiring long-term 

treatment which resulted in lost time 

for the year and some of the results are 

not a true reflection of the improvement 

in the overall safety, health and injury 

management at the RIA.

Measure
Actual Results

2013/2014

Results against target

Target Comments

Number of fatalities Zero Zero

Lost time injury/disease  
(LTI/D) incidence rate

1.03 Zero or 10% 
reduction –  
not achieved

Result for 
2012/3  
was 0

Lost time injury severity rate 100% Zero or 10% 
reduction –  
not achieved

Reflective of 
single injury 
requiring long-
term treatment 
under RTW

Percentage of injured workers 
returned to work within:

(i) 13 weeks and 
(ii) 26 weeks (i) 0% 

(ii) 0%

Greater than or 
equal to 80% – 
not achieved

Reflective of 
single injury 
requiring long-
term treatment 
under RTW

Percentage of managers 
and supervisors trained in 
occupational safety, health 
and injury management 
responsibilities

50% of 
managers have 
undertaken 
training

Greater than or 
equal to 80% –
not achieved

RIA is focusing 
on this in new 
financial year



118 Rottnest Island Authority      |      Annual Report      |      2013-2014

Other Legal Requirements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Advertising

Advertising Agencies Nil

Market Research $52,355
Savant $30,741

TNS $21,614

Polling Nil Nil

Direct Mail Nil Nil

Media Advertising $207,581
Optimum Media Decisions $201,099

Detail $6,482

Social Media $19,145 Creative Art House $19,145

Design $31,639 Identity Creative $31,639

Financial Estimates 2014/15 

As required under Treasurer’s Instruction 953 the annual financial estimates for the 

Rottnest Island Authority for the 2014/15 financial year are provided in the following table:

Rottnest Island Authority Operating Budget 2014/2015

$000 s

Income
Sales 157
Provision of service 33,334
Interest revenue 840
Other revenues 149
Total Income 34,479

Expenses
Cost of sales 120
Employee benefits expense 11,048

Supplies and services 24,526
Depreciation and amortisation 4,308
Finance costs 264
Accommodation 500
Other expenses 510
Total Expenses 41,276

Loss before grants and subsidies from State Government (6,797)

Grants and subsidies from State Government 7,094 
Services received free of charge -

Profit / (Loss) for the period 297
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